
Town Board of Trustees Regular Meeting  
Tuesday, July 8, 2025, 7:00 p.m. 
Town Hall Board Room, 170 MacGregor Ave, Estes Park 

Accessibility Statement 
The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. 
Contact us if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or 
townclerk@estes.org. 
Meeting Participation 
This meeting will be streamed live & available on the Town YouTube page. Click on the 
following links for more information on Digital Accessibility, Meeting Translations, & 
Public Comment.  

Agenda 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Agenda Approval 
Public Comment   
Town Board Comments/Liaison Reports 
Town Administrator Report 

Consent Agenda 
1. Expenditure Approval Lists – Bills 

2. Town Board Meeting & Study Session Minutes dated June 24, 2025 

3. Estes Park Planning Commission Minutes dated April 15, 2025 and May 20, 

2025 (acknowledgement only) 

Reports & Discussion Items (Outside Entities) 

1. Base Funding Report: Estes Arts District 
  

https://www.youtube.com/@TownofEstesParkCO/streams
http://www.estes.org/digitalaccessibility
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/ElectronicFile.aspx?dbid=0&docid=344116&
https://dms.estes.org/Forms/TownBoardPublicComment
http://dms.estes.org/WebLink/browse.aspx?id=253208&cr=1


Liquor Items 

1. Resolution 69-25 Transfer of Ownership from JWC Stanley Holding, LLC 
dba The Stanley Hotel to Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education 
LLC dba The Stanley Hotel, 333 Wonderview Avenue, Hotel & Restaurant 
Liquor License  
Description: Consider the transfer of the current liquor license to the new 

business owner to allow them to continue the sale of alcohol at the location. 

Action Items 

1. Initiated Ordinance Petition – To Amend the Estes Park Development Code 
Regarding Rezonings and Planned Unit Development Applications  
Description: Town Clerk to present the citizen-initiated ordinance petition. Per 

state statute the Board must adopt the ordinance as presented or set an election 

date. 

2. Initiated Ordinance Petition – To Repeal Section 11.4 and Associated 
Building Height Limits in Section 4.3 of the Estes Park Development Code  
Description: Town Clerk to present the citizen-initiated ordinance petition. Per 

state statute the Board must adopt the ordinance as presented or set an election 

date. 

3. Ordinance 13-25 Replace Ordinance 07-22 Considering the Inclusion of 
Certain Properties Located within the Town of Estes Park into the Municipal 
Sub-District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District  
Description: Consider replacing the 2022 adopted ordinance for compliance with 

the District’s rules & regulations. 

 

Agenda Continues on Page 3  



 

4. Resolution 72-25 Increase Contingency for the Prospect Mountain Water 
Improvements Project 
Description: Complete the project by funding additional work resulting from 

unforeseen construction and higher-than-anticipated costs, development and 

water rights fees. 

5. Resolution 73-25 Contingent Award of the Spruce Knob and Carriage Hills 
Water Systems Construction 
Description: Consider a construction contract contingent on project funding from 

proposed reallocations and loan closing.  

6. Resolution 74-25 Revise the Scope of Work for DOLA EIAF B-022 Estes 
Park Broadband Planning and Implementation 
Description: Staff recommends reducing the construction scope due to 

inflationary fiscal constraints.  

Reports & Discussion Items 

1. Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) Next Steps – Sunsetting and Bylaws 
Review  
Description: Review TAB role, bylaws, and possible sunsetting. Follow up on 

conversations at the June 10, 2025 Town Board meeting. 

Request to Enter Executive Session 
To discuss purchase acquisition lease transfer or sale of any real personal or other 

property interest, Section 24-6-402(4)(a), C.R.S., and for a conference with an 

attorney for the Board for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 

questions, Section 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S. - Real Property Considerations for 

Development of Housing at the Fish Hatchery Property.  

Adjourn 



Town of Estes Park, Larimer County, Colorado, June 24, 2025 

Minutes of a Regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Estes 
Park, Larimer County, Colorado.  Meeting held in the Town Hall in said Town 
of Estes Park on the 24th day of June, 2025. 

Present: Gary Hall, Mayor 
Marie Cenac, Mayor Pro Tem 
Trustees Bill Brown 
Kirby Hazelton 
Frank Lancaster 
Mark Igel 
Cindy Younglund 

Also Present: Travis Machalek, Town Administrator  
Jason Damweber, Deputy Town Administrator 
Greg White, Special Counsel 
Jackie Williamson, Town Clerk 

Absent: Dan Kramer, Town Attorney 

Mayor Hall called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

It was moved and seconded (Brown/Hazelton) to enter executive session to discuss 
purchase acquisition lease transfer or sale of any real personal or other property 
interest, Section 24-6-402(4)(a) C.R.S., and for a conference with an attorney for the 
Board for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions, Section 
24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S., to discuss the purchase of real property at several potential
locations for relocation of the police department, and it passed unanimously.

The Board entered into executive session at 6:02 p.m. and concluded the executive 
session at 6:52 p.m. 

Mayor Hall reconvened the meeting at 7:00 p.m. and all desiring to do so, recited the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

PROCLAMATION. 
Mayor Hall proclaimed 2025 as the “Year of Philanthropy” in honor of the 50th anniversary 
of the NoCo Foundation which provides support to local nonprofits.  Kristen Todd of the 
NoCo Foundation was present to thank the Board and the community for their ongoing 
support and noted approximately $7 million has been donated to the Estes Valley 
throughout the years. 

AGENDA APPROVAL. 
It was moved and seconded (Cenac/Hazelton) to approve the agenda, and it passed 
unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS. 
Melissa Wood/County resident, Linda Hanick/Town resident and former Transportation 
Advisory Board (TAB) member, and Wally Wood/County resident and current TAB 
member stated concern over the discussion and decision to remove Belle Morris from the 
TAB; discussion to sunset TAB; the need to consider reorganizing of TAB; and the need 
to remove Trustee Igel as the liaison. 

TRUSTEE COMMENTS. 
Board comments were heard and have been summarized: TAB considered the two 
transportation plans and each member provided their comments on the plans rather than 
one letter from the Chair; questioned the role of TAB and suggested it move to an advisory 
board; attended the recent groundbreaking for the Habitat for Humanity on Raven 
Avenue; reminder of the upcoming Trustee Talk; Rooftop Rodeo to be held July 5 – 10; 

DRAFT



Board of Trustees – June 24, 2025 – Page 2 
 
a number of Board members and staff attended a Platte River Power Authority meeting 
with the other member communities to discuss the organic contract; Sister Cities thanked 
the board for taking action to support the peace pole and informational plaque for the 
organization; the Opioid Abatement Council was recognized by the State for their work; 
Clarity of Place has begun crafting recommendation for the Tourism Master Plan, 
completed a stakeholder survey, a resident sentiment survey, and a community visioning 
session; Development Code open house to be held on the rewrite of the code; 
commented the Town continues to be fortunate to be a member of Platte River Power 
Authority; the Board would discuss the future of TAB at the July 8, 2025 meeting; thanked 
Belle Morris for her efforts on TAB; and noted the action taken at the last meeting to 
remove Belle Morris from TAB was per the bylaws. 
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORT. 
Town Administrator Machalek noted the Town expects the upcoming July 4th weekend 
and start of the Rooftop Rodeo to be busy, and stated individuals can text EPEVENTS to 
888-777 for alerts on the fireworks show, traffic, and parking. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Expenditure Approval Lists - Bills. 

2. Town Board Meeting and Study Session Minutes dated June 10, 2025. 

3. Resolution 63-25 Amendment Seven to the Agreement with SAFEbuilt Colorado, LLC 
Revising the Town's Collected Permit Fees from 0% to 10% & Extending the Term to 
December 31, 2026 for Building Services.  

4. Resolution 64-25 Renew a Memorandum of Understanding with Headwaters 
Economics Inc., Regarding Participation in the Community Planning Assistance for 
Wildfire Program.  

5. Resolution 65-25 Memorandum of Understanding with the Larimer County Sheriff’s 
Office to Complete Pre-employment Background Investigations for Police Personnel. 

It was moved and seconded (Igel/Brown) to approve the Consent Agenda Items 1, 2, 
4, and 5, and it passed unanimously. 
 
Consent Item #3 - Resolution 63-25 Amendment Seven to the Agreement with 
SAFEbuilt Colorado, LLC Revising the Town's Collected Permit Fees from 0% to 
10% & Extending the Term to December 31, 2026 for Building Services. Director 
Careccia stated the amendment to the contract would revise the terms of the service and 
extend the current Professional Services Agreement with SAFEbuilt Colorado to provide 
building safety services through the end of December 2026.  The only change to the 
service agreement would be the fee schedule.  Board comments and questions were 
summarized: the need exists to continue to review and analyze if a 90/10 split would be 
appropriate; questioned the Town’s satisfaction with the services provided by SAFEbuilt; 
and whether the contract would be consistent with other communities that contract with 
SAFEbuilt.  It was moved and seconded (Brown/Younglund) to approve the Consent 
Agenda Item 3, and it passed unanimously. 
 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS: (Outside Entities). 

1. BASE FUNDING REPORT: ESTES NONPROFIT NETWORK.  Outreach Director 
McPherson thanked the Town for the continued support and valued partnership to the 
local nonprofits. She provided an overview of how the Network supports local 
nonprofits that represent 10% of the GDP and over $300 million in revenue brought in 
by local nonprofits. The Netowrk further assists nonprofits with workforce 
development, training over 500 board members, provides board governance training, 
and grant writing support. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ITEMS: 
 

DRAFT



Board of Trustees – June 24, 2025 – Page 3 

1. ORDINANCE 08-25 REZONING 685 PEAK VIEW DRIVE FROM E-1 (ESTATE) TO
R (SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL), FRANK THEIS, CMS PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT, INC., (OWNER-APPLICANT) DAVID EMERSON, HABITAT FOR
HUMANITY OF THE ST. VRAIN VALLEY/APPLICANT.  Mayor Hall opened the
public hearing and Planner Hornbeck presented an application for a proposed Zoning
Map Amendment (rezoning) from E-1 (Estate) to R (Single-Family Residential) for the
4.46-acre site that contains a single residence built in 1965. The conceptual
subdivision plan has twelve residential lots ranging in size from 9,000 to 18,000 square
feet.  He identified the site as being outside of all mapped hazard areas including
flood, fire, and geologic; however, the site was previously identified as an important
wildlife habitat area per the 1996 Comprehensive Plan wildlife map.  It was noted the
property was annexed with the Dannels Addition in 1954 with R-1 zoning with a
minimum lot size of 9,000 square feet per single family dwelling, increased in 1972 to
18,000 square feet, and down-zoned again in 2000 to a less intense zoning of E-1,
which requires one acre (43,560 square feet) minimum lot size per dwelling unit.  He
stated the application complies with the relevant standards and criteria set forth in the
Estes Park Development Code (EPDC) and addressed changes in conditions related
to 264% increase in home prices; the cost burden of renters with households paying
more than 30% of gross income toward housing; the proposed development would be
compatible and consistent with the policies and intent of the Estes Forward
Comprehensive Plan and existing growth and development patterns in the area; and
adequate utilities exist to serve the future proposed development.  The proposed
rezoning has received numerous public comments opposing the rezoning with
comments including a lack of a change in conditions, incompatible with the
neighborhood character and density, concern with the environmental impact related
to drainage, wildlife, and wildfire risk, increase in traffic, an illegal spot zoning, and the
proposed homes would not be affordable.  Staff’s response to the comments including
the fact that changes in adopted plans and policies has occurred since the last zoning
in 2000; the area in not mapped within a high fire danger; traffic memo indicates no
adverse traffic impacts are anticipated; case law indicates rezoning in conformance
with adopted land use policies, such as the Comprehensive Plan; would not be
considered spot zoning; the proposed development is 2.6 units per acre and
compatible with the development in the adjacent neighborhood; and the applicant has
volunteered to record deed restrictions on eight (8) of the properties at 80 – 115%
AMI.  The Estes Park Planning Commission recommended the rezoning to the Town
Board at their June 17, 2025 meeting with conditions of approval.

David Emerson/Habitat for Humanity noted the organization develops homeownership
properties for indiviudals in the 80% AMI; have not had foreclosures; operate as the
builder and mortgage holder for the properties; 84% of homeowners remain in their
Habitat homes and grown in their homes; the individuals are vetted, stay in their
homes, and become a part of the community; and Habitat has a contract to purchase
the lots from the owner/developer.

Public comment in opposition of the rezoning application was heard from Mark
Hewitt/County resident, Dana Fritz/Town resident, Christy Jacobs/Town resident,
Stephanie Pawson/Town resident, Jed Eide/Town resident, Christann Higley/Town
resident, Larry Bader/Town resident, Laura Rustin/Town resident, Steve Wende/Town
resident, Norma McKern/County resident, Don Smith/County resident, Kristin
Poppitz/County resident, and Rebecca Urquhart/Town resident. Those opposing
stated there had not been a change in conditions in the Peak View area; stated a
rezoning to R – Residential high density zoning would be spot zoning; the plan
presented was poorly conceived; the rezoning and proposed plan would damage the
character and quality of the adjoining properties; concern the applicant has involved
Habitat Humanity to gain support for the project; concern the density of housing would
increase the fuel load in the area during a wildfire; the density would increase the
difficulty in evacuating the area in the case of an emergency; expressed concern with
the impact on the wildlife; the proposal would not be consistent with the
Comprehensive Plan; the rezoning does not meet the criteria set forth in the
Development Code; a previous Town Board rejected the rezoning application; and
noted the scale and intensity of use should be compatible with the neighborhood.

DRAFT



Board of Trustees – June 24, 2025 – Page 4 
 

Those speaking in favor of the rezoning included Dan and Sara Barwinski/Town 
residents, Scott Moulton/Town resident and Estes Park Housing Authority Executive 
Director, and Jon Bryson/Town resident.  Those speaking in favor stated support for 
Habitat for Humanity; noted the proposal would provide young families with the ability 
to own a home; advances the goals of the Comprehensive Plan; creates stable homes 
in the community; stated the proposal was the change of condition from the 2023 
proposal and the development of attainable housing; the plan creates an opportunity 
for homeownership in the valley; housing at the price point proposed continues to be 
difficult and critical to the community; and the proposal would change families lives. 

 
Board comments and question were heard and have been summarized: questioned 
the realistic timeframe for buildout of the eight attainable lots; questioned what 
bindsHabitat for Humanity to the project; a condition of approval would deed restrict 
eight (8) lots for attainable housing; commented middle income housing has not been 
built for those wanting a starter home; stated concern that the proposal would be used 
as justification for a change in conditions; noted the development would provide 
diversity of housing and community within the area; the newly adopted 
Comprehensive Plan should not be disregarded as the process allowed for public 
engagement and involvement by a community led committee; the density of the 
property to the west of the proposed development was noted as similar; zoning should 
not be considered static; the rezoning of the valley in 2000 was completed by 
reviewing the current land use at the time and did not consider the future use of the 
properties; and the Board should balance the property rights of the developer and the 
adjacent developed properties. 
 
Dave Emerson/Habitat for Humanity stated a purchase and sells agreement has been 
entered into with the developer for the eight (8) lots with the condition the developer 
completes the approval/entitlements within two (2) years.  A deed restriction would be 
executed within 60 days of approval of the rezoning to ensure the lots remain 
attainable and could only be removed by future action of the Board. 

 
It was moved and seconded (Hazelton/Younglund) to extend the meeting past 
10:00 p.m. to complete the agenda, and it passed unanimously. 

 
Mayor Hall closed the public hearing and it was moved and seconded 
(Younglund/Hazelton) to approve Ordinance 08-25, and it passed with Mayor Hall 
and Trustee Igel voting “No”. 
 
Mayor Hall called a break at 10:00 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 10:10 p.m. 
 

2. ORDINANCE 09-25 AMENDING SECTION 5.3 OF THE ESTES PARK 
DEVELOPMENT CODE REGARDING VEHICLE BASED ACCOMMODATIONS 
FOR SEASONAL EMPLOYEES.  Mayor Hall opened the public hearing and Planner 
Washam presented the ordinance that would extend the one-year pilot program and 
amend the access requirements for electric and water connections from the program, 
in order to allow qualified individuals to use an RV or similar vehicle as a temporary 
dwelling unit on private commercial property pursuant to the Estes Park Development 
Code section 5.3.D.7. The initial pilot program was approved by the Town Board 
through the approval of Ordinance 06-24 in April 9, 2024 with the program ending 
October 31, 2024. Inquiries were received but no applications were submitted citing 
“full hookups” as a limitation.  The pilot program was extended with the approval of 
Ordinance 04-25 on April 8, 2025 with the Board directing staff to consider removing 
the requirement for water and electric connections for eligible vehicles to allow self-
contained vehicles and increasing options for potential applicants.  The proposed 
ordinance would remove the requirements and extend the VBASE program through 
October 31, 2026. Mayor Hall closed the public hearing. It was moved and seconded 
(Igel/Brown) to approve Ordinance 09-25, and it passed unanimously. 

 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1. ORDINANCE 07-25 PROPOSED ELECTRIC RATE INCREASE.  Mayor Hall 

reconvened the public hearing that was continued on June 10, 2025.  Meghan Helper 

DRAFT



Board of Trustees – June 24, 2025 – Page 5 
 

presented the rate study reviewed at the previous Town Board meeting. Bill 
Urquhart/Town resident stated he heard from customers praise for the utility’s 
response, noted prices are too high, and the utility continues to make too much profit. 
He noted building confidence in the utility and addressing the concerns requires 
consistency with best industry practice and reasonableness.  Mayor Hall closed the 
public hearing.  It was moved and seconded (Hazelton/Brown) to approve 
Ordinance 07-25, and it passed unanimously. 

 
2. RESOLUTION 66-25 MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS OF FACT REGARDING THE 

PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF ELKHORN LODGE PHASE II TO THE TOWN OF 
ESTES PARK.  Mayor Hall opened the public hearing. Planner Hornbeck stated the 
annexation was referred to the Town Board on March 25, 2025 and found to be in 
substantial compliance at the Town Board meeting on May 13, 2025.  He presented 
Resolution 66-25 to determine if the Elkhorn Lodge Phase II would be eligible for 
annexation, determine compliance of the annexation petition submitted, and make 
certain findings of fact related thereto in accordance with the Municipal Annexation 
Act and Colorado Constitution to proceed to an annexation and zoning hearing.  Staff 
has completed a review of the annexation application and has found it meets the 
criteria. Katlin Reeves/County resident questioned the urbanization of the property 
and how it meets the state statute to be annexed.  She noted the RE-1 zoning district 
has been designated in the Development Code to preserve the rural character of the 
property, and therefore, does not meet the requirements for annexation. Mayor Hall 
closed the public hearing. It was moved and seconded (Hazelton/Cenac) to approve 
Resolution 66-25, and it passed unanimously. 
 

3. RESOLUTION 67-25 2045 TRANSPORTATION PLAN.  Manager Klein stated the 
Town Board approved a contract with Kimley-Horn to prepare a Multimodal 
Transportation Plan (MTP) and Transit Development Plan (TDP) to guide the 
implementation of projects to create a transportation network that integrates all modes 
of travel addressing safety, equity, and ease of navigation.  The plan provides a list of 
prioritized projects addressing vehicular, active transportation, and transit mobility. 
The MTP would guide the Town’s mobility and circulation for the next 20 years. The 
TDP performed a comprehensive needs-based evaluation of The Peak system and 
provided recommendations for transit service enhancement for the next five (5) years.    
It was moved and seconded (Younglund/Cenac) to approve Resolution 67-25, and 
the motion passed unanimously. 

 
4. RESOLUTION 68-25 AMENDMENT TO THE 2005 CONTINENTAL WATER BANK 

INC., WATER LEASE AGREEMENT.  Director Bergsten and Special Counsel White 
outlined the Town’s Windy Gap water has been used as replacement water for the 
surrounding area, including Glacier View, Saddle Notch Ranch, Mary’s Lake 
Campground, Cheley Camp, and the Idlewild Water Users Association. To comply 
with state water law as it relates to replacement water, individual well owners would 
each need to secure replacement water and acquire a water court-approved 
augmentation plan, a financially unfeasible burden for smaller properties. The 
Continental Water Bank (CWB) provides smaller properties with the ability to meet 
their replacement water obligations. The 2005 Water Lease Agreement provides CWB 
with a supply of replacement water. The agreement would include an annual fee to 
cover administrative costs, an annual lease payment to the Town, the temporary 
transfer of six (6) Colorado-Big Thompson (C-BT) units from the company to the Town, 
and require a CWB property to annex upon the request of the Town or upon the 
property being provided water service by the Town. It was moved and seconded 
(Lancaster/Hazelton) to approve Resolution 68-25, and it passed unanimously. 
 

5. ORDINANCE 10-25 LAND LEASE WITH PLATTE RIVER POWER AUTHORITY 
(PRPA) FOR LOT 4, ELM ROAD 2ND ADDITION.  Mayor Hall opened the public 
hearing.  Director Bergsten stated Platte River Power Authority (PRPA), the Town’s 
municipally owned wholesale power and transmission provider, requires a utility-scale 
battery site in Estes Park. The project would support PRPA’s Resource Diversification 
Policy to decarbonize the electric generation while maintaining or improving reliability.  
The undeveloped Town owned site connects to the Town’s electric supply station, 
making it ideal for battery infrastructure.  The property would be leased to PRPA who 

DRAFT



Board of Trustees – June 24, 2025 – Page 6 
 

would then sublease it to a private partner able to leverage federal tax credits to 
reduce the project’s total cost. Town Board comments and questions were heard and 
summarized: questioned the number of batteries that would be included; whether a 
development plan would be needed and would the lease be contingent on the 
development plan; esthetics would be a concern as Moraine leads to the entrance of 
Rocky Mountain National Park; concern was heard on the visibility of the site and the 
environmental impacts; questioned the value of the land; questioned if other Town 
owned properties were considered; and noted the importance of continuity of power 
and a stable foundation of power. Mayor Hall closed the public hearing.  It was moved 
and seconded (Hazelton/Brown) to approve Ordinance 10-25, and it passed 
unanimously. 

 
 
Whereupon Mayor Hall adjourned the meeting at 11:12 p.m. 
 
 
              
      Gary Hall, Mayor 
 
 
       
Jackie Williamson, Town Clerk 

DRAFT



Town of Estes Park, Larimer County, Colorado June 24, 2025 

Minutes of a Study Session meeting of the TOWN BOARD of the Town of 
Estes Park, Larimer County, Colorado. Meeting held at Town Hall in the 
Board Room in said Town of Estes Park on the 24th day of June, 2025.  

Board: Mayor Hall, Mayor Pro Tem Cenac, Trustees Brown, 
Hazelton, Igel, Lancaster, and Younglund 

Attending: All 

Also Attending: Town Administrator Machalek, Deputy Town Administrator 
Damweber, Special Counsel White, and Deputy Town Clerk 
Beers 

Absent: Town Attorney Kramer 

Mayor Hall called the meeting to order at 3:40 p.m. 

STATE WILDFIRE CODE. The Colorado Department of Public Safety, Division of Fire 
Prevention and Control, through establishment of a Wildfire Resiliency Code Board, 
would be adopting the Colorado Wildfire Resiliency Code on June 30, 2025 establishing 
minimum standards for the protection of life and property from the hazards of wildfire. 
Municipalities would have nine months (March 31, 2026) from State adoption to adopt 
their own wildfire regulations meeting or exceeding those established in the Code. 
Director Careccia introduced Dan Wester/SAFEbuilt Chief Building Official, Jon 
Landkamer/Estes Valley Fire Protection District (EVFPD) Division Chief and Stacey 
Sutherland/EVFPD Prevention Lieutenant who were present to answer quesitons. 
Division Chief Landkamer reviewed the draft Code which addressed: establishing a 
code official to administer and enforce the Code; permits required for applicable 
construction; would establish criteria for the submittal and preparation of construction 
documents; identify wildfire hazard areas via official maps; regulations for structure 
hardening to reduce risk of ignition; and establish requirements for plantings, trees, 
walls, and fences within designated ignition zones around structures. He stated the 
Town of Estes Park and the EVFPD act as a compliance agency and would be 
responsible for identifying which hazard map to adopt. If adopted, the Code would 
supersede the adopted International Building Code and would require evaluations and 
compliance on construction and alterations for new, existing, and moved structures and 
their appendices which reside within the designated Wildland Urban Interface (WUI) 
areas.  

Board comments and questions have been summarized: requested additional detail on 
the provisions for alterations of the exterior of the structure, the process for obtaining 
approval, and from which agency; how wildfire risks are identified and by which 
agencies; requested clarification on which areas are identified as high-risk; questioned if 
there are price comparisons for the use of specific non-combustible material; 
questioned fencing which contains a percentage of combustible material may be 
impacted by the Code; how testing of materials would be conducted; how homeowners 
insurance companies may be mandating compliance with the Code; and questioned if 
staff anticipates sections where the wildfire code and building code conflict with each 
other. 

BUSINESS VIEWPOINT. Brownfield’s Manager Palmesano spoke regarding Estes 
Park’s unique location, hospitality, visitation, nature and the lasting impacts of a positive 
customer experience. There being no Board questions, they thanked Manager 
Palmesano for the presentation, her observations and perspective on the customer 
experience. 

DRAFT



    Town Board Study Session – June 10, 2025 – Page 2 

POLICE DEPARTMENT FACILITY UPDATE. Staff provided a status update on efforts 
to relocate the Police Department (PD) out of Town Hall. In late 2024, the Town 
contracted with Redstone Architects Inc. and Infusion Architects to conduct a pre-design 
study to identify programmatic and space needs, and evaluate potential sites which 
involved engagement with the Town and PD leadership. The pre-design study included 
a space needs analysis, review of potential locations, conceptual floor and site plans, 
and cost projections. Chief Stewart provided facility project goals and objectives 
including: identify a central location which optimizes response to critical infrastructure 
such as schools, special events, and downtown; a safe and secure facility with public 
and secure separations for both the building and the site; safe and welcoming 
environment for staff and the community; opportunity to expand services and 
community outreach events; and a modern state of the art facility would address 
retention and recruitment while providing space for the public and the department for 
public purposes. Staff noted the existing space and uses in Town Hall which was 
estimated at 7,644 square feet. Melissa Jennings and Randal Johnson, design 
consultants, reviewed the space analysis and the method for determining square 
footage, identifying efficient use of essential space and options for a single or multi-story 
building. Finance Director Zimmerman reviewed construction cost of a 30,000 square 
foot facility with anticipated construction in 2027 at $31,359,000, with a total project cost 
of approximately $33 million with land acquisition and financing cost. The annual debt 
service would be dependent on the financing option and has been estimated at 
approximately $2,230,788 - $2,245,675.  A comparative analysis of neighboring 
municipalities PD relocations was reviewed including: staff size, square footage, and 
financing for Timnath, Windsor, Evans, Firestone, and Erie. Staff stated the Town does 
not have funds appropriated for land acquisition, relocation, or construction of a new 
facility. Staff stated the use of current sales tax revenues or certificates of participation 
(COPs) would not require a ballot issue presented to registered voters. Alternative 
methods for financing could include a new or increased sales tax, or a general 
obligation bond funded by property tax. Both options would require a ballot issue 
presented to registered voters. Based on ongoing impacts and challenges the current 
PD facility poses to the professional management and execution of law enforcement 
responsibilities, staff recommended a bond authorization ballot issue at the April 2026 
Municipal Election or General Election on November 4, 2026. Staff requested Board 
feedback and guidance on the proposed financing and ballot timeline for the 
construction of a new facility.  

Board comments and questions have been summarized: concerned the facility may 
need to be increased to address future needs; questioned the availability of grants to 
offset costs; questioned if staff anticipates changes to sales tax revenues that may 
impact the project; and could the PD building qualify as the collateral for COPs. 
Additional discussion ensued regarding recent state legislation that provides fire districts 
the ability to pursue sales tax to fund operations, potentially lower sales tax rates for the 
larger district service area, and eliminate the Town’s sales tax allocation to fund 
operations. 

TRUSTEE & ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS & QUESTIONS. 
None. 

FUTURE STUDY SESSION AGENDA ITEMS. 
It was requested and determined the Business Use of Golf Carts on Trails would be 
handed over to the Transportation Advisory Board for public input to be presented as a 
Report & Discussion Item at a future meeting, and the Visit Estes Park 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Larimer County; and a Joint Study Session with the 
EVFPD were approved/unscheduled.    

There being no further business, Mayor Hall adjourned the meeting at 5:33 p.m. 

Bunny Victoria Beers, Deputy Town Clerk 

DRAFT



Town of Estes Park, Larimer County, Colorado, April 15,  2025 

Minutes of a Regular meeting of the ESTES PARK PLANNING COMMISSION of the 
Town of Estes Park, Larimer County, Colorado. Meeting was held in said Town of Estes 
Park on April 15, 2025.  

Commission: Chair Charles Cooper, Vice Chair David Arterburn, Dick 
Mulhern, Chris Pawson 

Attending: Commissioners Cooper, Arterburn, Mulhern, Pawson, 
Community Development Director Steve Careccia, Planner 
Paul Hornbeck, Town Attorney Dan Kramer, Recording 
Secretary Karin Swanlund 

Absent: none 

Chair Cooper called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. There were six people in the 
audience. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
It was moved and seconded (Cooper/Mulhern) to approve the agenda. The motion 
passed 4-0. 

CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL 
It was moved and seconded (Arterburn/Mulhern) to approve the consent 
agenda.   The motion passed 4-0. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none 

ACTION ITEMS: 

1. Election of Officers

It was moved and seconded (Mulhern/Pawson) to appoint Charles Cooper as Chair 
and David Arterburn as Vice Chair. The motion passed 4-0. 

2. Rezone  685 Peak View Dr.   Senior Planner Hornbeck 
Request to continue the item to the May 20, 2025 Planning Commission meeting 

It was moved and seconded (Arterburn/Mulhern) to approve the continuance 
request.   The motion passed 4-0. 

DISCUSSION: 
1. Design Workshop Consultants Development Code Update 

Eric Krohngold and Phillip Supino reviewed the plan and cadence of the project 
they have been hired to do. They asked that the Planning Commission be the 
driving force/steering committee for the rewrite, requesting candid, direct 
feedback. 

Summary of presentation: 
Process Discussion included key goals for the Code update. (see Commissioner 
comments below) 
The implementation of Housing, Natural Environment, Built Environment, and 
Transportation, all subjects taken from the Comprehensive Plan action statements, 
was also discussed. 
Next steps: Meet with the Board of Trustees, organize code recommendations, 
hold a community open house on June 25, and launch the project website. 



 
Planning Commission – April 15, 2025 – Page 2 
 
 

Commissioner Comments/Questions: 
Balance is key 
Community Member input: how and where   
Localize “Best Practices” 
Ensure transparency of changes 
Ensure consistency with Community Values 
Differentiate aspirational vs. law 
Wildlife buffers/migration- updated information needed 
Revise land use definitions that do not match the Zoning District 
Affordable Housing/Starter Home Zoning should be explored 
Rezoning requirements and density issues need to be addressed 
Changes in conditions need clarity 
Design Standards should address quality development 
Update drainage/landscape/lighting standards 
Sidewalks/Paths to nowhere do not seem practical 
Address building maintenance/blight/aesthetics 
Fire mitigation 
Development incentives for builders to develop what the Town wants 
Housing terms:  workforce, affordable, attainable, need clarity 
Parking standards/incentives 
 

2. Member Recruitment 
Director Careccia reported that the open Commissioner position is being actively 
recruited. He asked that current Commissioners spread the word. 

 
3. Upcoming meetings 

The May 20th meeting will have three action items:  VBASE update, the Stanley 
Park courts plan, and the Coyote Run rezone. A joint meeting with the Town Board 
will be scheduled for early June.   
 
 
 
 
 

There being no further business, Chair Cooper adjourned the meeting at 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
                                                       _________________________________ 
       Chuck Cooper, Chair 
 
       
Karin Swanlund, Recording Secretary  
 



 Town of Estes Park, Larimer County, Colorado, May 20,  2025 
 
Minutes of a Regular meeting of the ESTES PARK PLANNING COMMISSION of the 
Town of Estes Park, Larimer County, Colorado. Meeting was held in said Town of Estes 
Park on May 20, 2025.  
 
Commission: Chair Charles Cooper, Vice Chair David Arterburn, Dick 

Mulhern, Chris Pawson 
 
Attending: Commissioners Cooper, Arterburn, Mulhern, Pawson, 

Community Development Director Steve Careccia, Planner 
Kara Washam, Town Board Liaison Frank Lancaster, 
Recording Secretary Karin Swanlund 

 
Absent: Mulhern, Pawson 
 
Chair Cooper called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. There were three people in the 
audience. 
 
INTRODUCTIONS 
 
There was no quorum; therefore, no official meeting was held. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
CONSENT AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
  
CONTINUED ITEMS: 
 

1. Rezone  685 Peak View Dr.    
Request to continue the item to the June 17, 2025, Planning Commission meeting 
 

ACTION ITEMS: 
 

1. Code Amendment Vehicle-Based Accommodations  Planner II, Washam 
 

A request to consider an amendment of the Estes Park Development Code (EPDC) 
to remove the requirement for electric and water availability for the Vehicle-Based 
Accommodations for Seasonal Employees (VBASE) program 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

1. Community Conversations Eric White, Adult Services Director   
Estes Valley Library.  
  

Eric shared a slide show explaining Community Conversations and how it will benefit 
the Development Code update. The main goal is to give people from across the 
community a voice and inform decision-making. 

 
 

There being no further business, Chair Cooper adjourned the meeting at 1:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
                                                       _________________________________ 
       Chuck Cooper, Chair 
 
       
Karin Swanlund, Recording Secretary  
 



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Report 
To:  Honorable Mayor Hall & Board of Trustees 

Through: Town Administrator Machalek 

From: Director Endsley  

Department: Town Administrator’s Office 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Base Funding Report: Estes Arts District 

Attachments:
1. Presentation 



7/7/2025

1

2
0

2
5

2024 Base Funding Report

E A D
E S T E S  A R T S  D I S T R I C T

www.EstesArtsDistr ict .org

The Estes Arts District is the nonprofit umbrella arts 
organization committed to economic growth 

through arts and business partnerships, forging a 
creative community of collaboration, creativity, 

education, inclusion, and strengthening the cultural 
vitality of the Estes Valley art community. 

OUR
MISSION

1

2

ATTACHMENT 1



7/7/2025

2

The EAD Board of Directors
Introducing

Greg Miles
President

Lars Sage
Vice President 

Steve Tice
Treasurer

Amber Lausted
Digital Marketing

Tim Phillips
Board Member

Victoria Endsley
Executive Director

Dana Paiement
Member -Visit Estes Park

Velina Davidson
Board Member

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

3

4



7/7/2025

3

• World Record Community 
Chalk Art Event

• August 2026
• Location TBD
• The world record for the 

longest chalk drawing is 3.5532 
miles, or 18,761 feet long, and 
was created in Greeley, 
Colorado on September 12, 
2015

• Participants: Local Artists, 
Businesses & Community 
Volunteers

CHALK 
ART

• Community Mural Project
⚬ A digital guide will be 

created to help visitors 
locate & visit public art 
throughout Estes Park.

⚬ All murals will be created by  
local Artist.

• Public Art Installations
⚬ Art Benches, sculptures, and 

other installations will be 
auctioned and donated.

⚬ Created by local artists
⚬ Placed throughout town
⚬ Also featured in digital guide

PUBLIC 
ART

5

6



7/7/2025

4

Estes Arts District Hosted Events:
• Friends of Folk Festival
• First Friday! Art Groove
• Community Mural Project
• Community Art Festival & Chalk 

Art Event
Partnered Future Events:

• Youth Art Programs
• Local Artist Series - Workshops 

& Classes
• Bear & Bee - Community Art 

Festival & Rock & Roll Prints 
Festival

EVENTS 
2025

EAD Sponsored Events & Programs:
• Estes Park Artist Studio Tour
• Estes Valley Plein Air Event
• Snowygrass
• Dick Orleans Memorial 

Scholarship
• Art Center of Estes Park - Magic 

of Masks Show
• Songwriting Retreat 

Scholarships
• Bear & Bee’s Community Art 

Festival
• & more...

EVENTS
2025

7

8



7/7/2025

5

Colorado Creative Industries Designation!

Our Goal is to obtain the CCI Designation as a Certified Arts District in 2025. This 
would give Estes Park the recognition and benefits that come with this 
designation. We will be one of the unique arts communities that contributes to 
our state’s economy through creativity, culture, and the arts. The program’s goal 
is to help communities increase jobs, incomes, and investments in creative 
places.

Colorado Creative Districts attract artists and creative entrepreneurs to a 
community, infusing new energy and innovation, which in turn enhances the 
economic and civic capital of the community. Districts also serve as a focal point 
for celebrating and strengthening a community’s unique identity, become a 
space to showcase cultural and artistic organizations and events, and contribute 
to the development of vibrant communities.

CCI Designation!

Benefits of the program include:
• A cash award of up to $10,000 for newly certified districts (local match required)
• A technical and professional assistance fund available to districts that have 

been certified for one or more years (local match required)
• A marketing strategy developed in partnership with the Colorado Tourism 

Office to support tourism and bring Colorado’s Creative Districts to a national 
audience

• Support in developing and pitching content and news about how creativity is 
changing Colorado through the work of creative districts

• Two highway signs placed on state highways near districts
• Access to statewide economic data on the impact of creative districts
• Access to the Western States Arts Federation (WESTAF) Creative Vitality Suite, 

an online platform for creative economy data

9

10



7/7/2025

6

New Membership Program!

Become a Member of the EAD:
• Arts Calendar Listings
• Access to Member Only Events & Training
• Quarterly Marketing/Creative Business Workshops
• Invitation to quarterly Member Meet-Up networking events with fellow artists, 

businesses, and galleries
• Opportunity to showcase your business in the Online Creative Business 

Magazine and Holiday Guide
• Share your art and business partnership story on EAD’s website, social media 

and/or member newsletter
• Submit events for EAD to promote on social media and/or member newsletter
• Receive special discounts to art events 
• Receive regular art advocacy, grant, and funding opportunity updates
• & so much more....

Thank You!

Questions?

Please let us know how we can better help support you as an Artist, 
Creative Business, Nonprofit, or Art Lover.

info@estesartsdistr ict .org

www.EstesArtsDistr ict .org

11

12



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Memo 
To: Honorable Mayor Hall & Board of Trustees 

Through: Town Administrator Machalek  

From: Jackie Williamson, Town Clerk 

Department: Town Clerk 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Resolution 69-25 Transfer of Ownership from JWC Stanley Holding, LLC 

dba The Stanley Hotel to Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and 

Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel, 333 Wonderview Avenue, Hotel & 

Restaurant Liquor License 

Type: Public Hearing, Quasi-Judicial 

Objective: 
Transfer an existing liquor license located at 333 Wonderview Avenue to the applicant, 

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel. 

Present Situation:  
A Hotel & Restaurant license is currently held at the location referenced above by JWC 

Stanley Holding, LLC dba The Stanley Hotel.  The applicant is requesting a transfer of 

the license and submitted a complete application to the Town Clerk’s office on May 15, 

2025, and a temporary permit was issued May 15, 2025.  The temporary permit 

authorizes the transferee to continue the sale of alcohol as permitted under the current 

license while the application to transfer ownership of the license is pending.  The 

applicant submitted all necessary paperwork and fees and has previously completed 

TIPS training. 

Proposal:  
The Town Board to review and consider the application to transfer the existing license 

to Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel. 



Advantages:  
The transfer of the license provides the business owner with the opportunity to continue 

operating an existing, liquor-licensed establishment without an interruption of service to 

its clientele. 

Disadvantages:  
The business owner is denied the opportunity to continue operating an existing liquor-

licensed business during the licensing process 

Action Recommended:  
Approval to transfer the existing Hotel & Restaurant liquor license to Stanley 

Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel. 

Finance/Resource Impact:  
The fee paid to the Town of Estes Park for a Hotel & Restaurant liquor license transfer 

is $1319.  The fee covers the administrative costs related to processing the application, 

background checks, and business licensing.  In addition, the renewal fee payable to the 

Town for a Hotel & Restaurant liquor license is $869 per year. 

Level of Public Interest:  
Low. 

Sample Motion:  
I move to approve/deny Resolution 69-25 for the transfer of Hotel & Restaurant liquor 

license filed by Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley 

Hotel. 

Attachments:  
1. Procedures for Transfer 

2. Resolution 69-25 

3. Application, Diagram, Individual History 



PROCEDURE FOR TRANSFER OF LIQUOR LICENSE 

MAYOR. 

The next order of business is convening the Liquor Licensing Authority for the Town of Estes 

Park. A public hearing on the application to transfer a Hotel & Restaurant liquor license held 

by JWC Stanley Holding, LLC dba The Stanley Hotel to Stanley Partnership for Art Culture 

and Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel, 333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, Colorado. 

TOWN CLERK. 

Will present the application to transfer a Hotel & Restaurant license to Stanley Partnership for 

Art Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel and confirm the following: 

• The application was filed May 15, 2025.

• The Town has received all necessary fees and hearing costs.

• The applicant is filing as a LLC.

• There is no police report with regard to the investigation of the applicant as the applicant

is a quasi-governmental entity.

• Status of T.I.P.S. Training: Complete

MAYOR. 

• Ask the Board of Trustees if there are any questions of any person speaking at any time

during the course of this hearing.

• Declare the public hearing closed.

MOTION: 

I move that Resolution 69-25 be approved/denied to transfer a Hotel & Restaurant license 

held by JWC Stanley Holding, LLC dba The Stanley Hotel to Stanley Partnership for Art 

Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel, 333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, 

Colorado. 

CLOSING: 

I declare the Liquor Licensing Authority for the Town of Estes Park is adjourned and I now 

reconvene the regular Town Board meeting. 

ATTACHMENT 1



RESOLUTION 69-25 

APPROVING A TRANSFER OF A HOTEL & RESTAURANT LIQUOR LICENSE FROM 

JWC STANLEY HOLDING, LLC DBA THE STANLEY HOTEL TO 

STANLEY PARTNERSHIP FOR ART CULTURE AND EDUCATION LLC DBA 

THE STANLEY HOTEL, 333 WONDERVIEW AVENUE, ESTES PARK, CO 80517 

WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees acting in their capacity as the Liquor 

Licensing Authority for the Town of Estes Park held a public hearing on July 8, 2025 for a 

Transfer of a Hotel & Restaurant Liquor License, filed by Stanley Partnership for Art 

Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley Hotel, 333 Wonderview Avenue; and  

WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 44-3-303 and § 44-3-307 and Regulation 304 requires the 

licensing authority shall consider the requirements outlined in said sections for a transfer 

application; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees finds the application meets the requirements 

outlined in the aforementioned section of the statutes and liquor regulations for the 

granting of this transfer of a liquor license.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO:  

The Board approves the application for a Transfer of a Hotel & Restaurant Liquor 

License, filed by Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC dba The Stanley 

Hotel, 333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, Colorado. 

DATED this   day of , 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 2



DR 8404 (08/08/24)
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liquor Enforcement Division
PO BOX 17087
Denver CO 80217-0087 <^i . . . n < ..i . • ,. <•
(3o'3)'2o5"23oo"""""' Colorado Liquor Retail License Application

* Note that the Division will not accept cash Q Paid by Check Date Uploaded to Movelt

Paid Online

New License |_| New-Concurrent |XI Transfer of Ownership |_| State Property Only |_| Master file

All answers must be printed in black ink or typewritten

Applicant must check the appropriate box(es)

Applicant should obtain a copy of the Colorado Liquor and Beer Code: SBG.Colorado.gov/Liquor

Applicant is applying as a/an Individual [Xl Limited Liability Company || Association or Other

II Corporation |] Partnership (includes Limited Liability and Married
Couple Partnerships)

Applicant Name If an LLC, name of LLC; if partnership, at least 2 partner's names; if corporation, name of corporation

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC
FEIN Number State Sales Tax Number

99-4053826
Trade Name of Establishment (DBA) Business Telephone

The Stanley Hotel (970) 577-4000
Address of Premises (specify exact location of premises, include suite/unit numbers)

333 Wonderview Avenue
City County State ZIP Code

Estes Park Larimer co 80517
Mailing Address (Number and Street)

333 Wonderview Avenue

3ity or Town

Estes Park

State

co
71P Code

80517
Email Address

mrios@StanleyHotel.com

If the premises currently has a liquor or beer license, you must answer the following questions.

Present Trade Name of Establishment (DBA)

The Stanley Hotel
Present State License Number Present Class of License Present Expiration Date

12-72337 Hotel & Restaurant (City) 09/17/2025

Page 1 of 16

ATTACHMENT 3



Section A Nonrefundable application fees*

II Application Fee for New License................................................................................................................... $1,100.00

II Application Fee for New License with Concurrent Review............................................................................$1,200.00

|X| Application Fee for Transfer..........................................................................................................................$1,100.00

Section B Liquor License Fees*

Add Optional Premises to H & R ...............................................................$100.00 X Total

Add Sidewalk Service Area.................................................................................................................................$75.00

II Arts License (City).......................................................................................................................................^

Arts License (County).......................................................................................................................................$308.75

Beer and Wine License (City)...........................................................................................................................$351.25

Beer and Wine License (County)......................................................................................................................$436.25

II Brew Pub License (City).................................................................................................................................. $750.00

II Brew Pub License (County)..............................................................................................................................$750.00

Campus Liquor Complex (City) ........................................................................................................................$500.00

Campus Liquor Complex (County)...................................................................................................................$500.00

Campus Liquor Complex (State)......................................................................................................................$500.00

II Club License (City)...........................................................................................................................................$308.75

Club License (County)......................................................................................................................................$308.75

II Distillery Pub License (City)..............................................................................................................................$750

II Distillery Pub License (County).......................................................................................................................$750.00

II Entertainment Facility License (City)................................................................................................................$500.00

II Entertainment Facility License (County)...........................................................................................................$500.00

Hotel and Restaurant License (City).................................................................................................................$500.00

Hotel and Restaurant License (County) ...........................................................................................................$500.00

Hotel and Restaurant License with one optional premises (City).....................................................................$600.00

II Hotel and Restaurant License with one optional premises (County)................................................................$600,00

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 2 of 16



Section B Liquor License Fees* (Continued)

Liquor-Licensed Drugstore (City).....................................................................................................................$227.50

II Liquor-Licensed Drugstore (County)................................................................................................................$312.50

Lodging Facility License (City)..........................................................................................................................$500.00

II Lodging Facility License (County)....................................................................................................................$500.00

II Manager Registration - H & R ............................................................................................................................$30.00

II Manager Registration -Tavern ...........................................................................................................................$30.00

Manager Registration - Lodging & Entertainment .........................................................................,....................$30.00

II Manager Registration - Campus Liquor Complex ..............................................................................................$30.00

Optional Premises License (City).....................................................................................................................$500.00

Optional Premises License (County)................................................................................................................$500.00

II Racetrack License (City)..................................................................................................................................$500.00

II Racetrack License (County).............................................................................................................................$500.00

II Resort Complex License (City).........................................................................................................................$500.00

II Resort Complex License (County)....................................................................................................................$500.00

II Related Facility - Campus Liquor Complex (City).............................................................................................$160.00

II Related Facility - Campus Liquor Complex (County) .......................................................................................$160.00

II Related Facility - Campus Liquor Complex (State) ..........................................................................................$160.00

Retail Gaming Tavern License (City)................................................................................................................$500.00

II Retail Gaming Tavern License (County)...........................................................................................................$500.00

II Retail Liquor Store License - Additional (City).................................................................................................$227.50

Retail Liquor Store License -Additional (County).............................................................................................$312.50

D Retail Liquor Store (City).................................................................................................................................4^^^

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 3 of 16



Section B Liquor License Fees* (Continued)

II Retail Liquor Store (County).............................................................................................................................$312.50

II Tavern License (City)........................................................................................................................................$500.00

II Tavern License (County)...................................................................................................................................$500.00

II Vintners Restaurant License (City)...................................................................................................................$750.00

II Vintners Restaurant License (County)..............................................................................................................$750.00

Questions? Visit: SBG.Colorado.gov/Liquorfor more information

Do not write in this space - For Department of Revenue use only

Liability Information

License Account Number Liability Date

License Issued Through (Expiration Date) Total

$

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 4 of 16



Application Documents Checklist and Worksheet

Instructions: This checklist should be utilized to assist applicants with filing all required
documents for licensure. All documents must be properly signed and correspond with the name

of the applicant exactly. All documents must be typed or legibly printed. Upon final State approval
the license will be mailed to the local licensing authority. Application fees are nonrefundable.
Questions? Visit: SBG.Colorado.gov/Liquorfor more information

Items submitted, please check all appropriate boxes completed or documents submitted

I. Applicant information

Applicant/Licensee identified

State sales tax license number listed or applied for at time of application

License type or other transaction identified

Return originals to local authority (additional items may be required by the local licensing authority)

All sections of the application need to be completed

Master file applicants must include the Application for Master File form DR 8415 and applicable fees to this
Retail License Application

II. Diagram of the premises

No larger than 81/2"X 11"

Dimensions included (does not have to be to scale). Exterior areas should show
type of control (fences, walls, entry/exit points, etc.)

Separate diagram for each floor (if multiple levels)

Return originals to local authority (additional items may be required by the local licensing authority)

Kitchen - identified if Hotel and Restaurant

Bold/Outlined Licensed Premises

III. Proof of property possession (One Year Needed)

Deed in name of the applicant (or) (matching Applicant Name provided on page 1) date stamped / filed with
County Clerk

Lease in the name of the applicant (or) (matching Applicant Name provided on page 1)

Lease assignment in the name of the applicant with proper consent from the landlord and acceptance
by the applicant

II Other agreement if not deed or lease, (matching Applicant Name provided on page 1)

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 5 of 16



IV. Background information (DR 8404-1) and financial documents

Complete DR 8404-1 for each principal (individuals with more than 10% ownership, officers,
directors, partners, members)

Fingerprints taken and submitted to the appropriate Local Licensing Authority through an approved State
Vendor. Master File applicants submit results to the State

Do not complete fingerprint cards prior to submitting your application.
The Vendors are as follows:
IdentoGO
Appointment Scheduling Website: https://uenroll.identogo.com/workflows/25YQHT
Phone: 844-539-5539 (toll-free)
IdentoGO FAQs: https://cbi.colorado.gov/sections/biometric-identification-and-records-uniVbiometric-
identification-and-records-unit-faqs

State Liquor Code for IdentoGO: 25YQHT
Colorado Fingerprinting
Appointment Scheduling Website: http://www.coloradofingerprinting.com/cabs/
Phone: 720-292-2722 833-224-2227 (toll free)
State Liquor Code for Colorado Fingerprinting: C030LIQI

II Purchase agreement, stock transfer agreement, and/or authorization to transfer license

II List of all notes and loans (Copies to also be attached)

V. Sole proprietor/husband and wife partnership (if applicable)

rt n A r'~-fr\ i -...r. .1 r~»..- _ -._ ^ _ A rf: -i _. .'i.
1-/1 \ -T\J I ^J 1-UVVIUI I i ^0^1 lot/ r-in IUCIVIL

Copy of State issued Driver's License or Colorado Identification Card for each applicant

VI. Corporate applicant information (if applicable)

Certificate of Incorporation

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Authorization if foreign corporation (out of state applicants only)

VII. Partnership applicant information (if applicable)

Partnership Agreement (general or limited).

Certificate of Good Standing

VIII. Limited Liability Company applicant information (if applicable)

Copy of articles of organization

Certificate of Good Standing

Copy of Operating Agreement (if applicable)

Certificate of Authority if foreign LLC (out of state applicants only)

IX. Manager registration for Hotel and Restaurant, Tavern, Lodging & Entertainment, and

Campus Liquor Complex licenses when included with this application

$30.00 fee

If owner is managing, no fee required
DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 6 of 16



1. Is the applicant (including any of the partners if a partnership; members or
managers if a limited liability company; or officers, stockholders or directors if a
corporation) or managers under the age of twenty-one years?.________________. U Yes W No

2. Has the applicant (including any of the partners if a partnership; members or managers if a limited
liability company; or officers, stockholders or directors if a corporation) or managers ever (in
Colorado or any other state):

a. Been denied an alcohol beverage license?.____________________________.. Q Yes ® No

b. Had an alcohol beverage license suspended or revoked?._______________.. Q Yes ® No

c. Had interest in another entity that had an alcohol beverage license
suspended or revoked?._____________________________________________. 0 Yes ® No

If you answered yes to a, b or c above, explain in detail on a separate sheet.

3. Has a liquor license application (same license class), that was located within 500
feet of the proposed premises, been denied within the preceding two years?.______. 0 Yes (•) No

If "yes", explain in detail.

4. Are the premises to be licensed within 500 feet, of any public or private school
that meets compulsory education requirements of Colorado law, or the principal
campus of any college, university or seminary? ____________________________ 0 Yes (•) No

or

Waiver by local ordinance? 0 Yes 0 No

Other

5. Is your Liquor Licensed Drugstore (LLDS) or Retail Liquor Store (RLS) within
1500 feet of another retail liquor license for off-premises sales in a jurisdiction
with a population of greater than (>) 10,0000? NOTE: The distance shall be
determined by a radius measurement that begins at the principal doorway of the
LLDS/RLS premises for which the application is being made and ends at the
principal doorway of the Licensed LLDS/RLS..__________________________N_/A 0 Yes 0 No

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 7 of 16



6. Is your Liquor Licensed Drugstore (LLDS) or Retail Liquor Store (RLS) within
3000 feet of another retail liquor license for off-premises sales in a jurisdiction
with a population of less than (<) 10,0000? NOTE: The distance shall be
determined by a radius measurement that begins at the principal doorway of the
LLDS/RLS premises for which the application is being made and ends at the
principal doorway of the Licensed LLDS/RLS..___________________________N/A Q Yes 0 No

For additional Retail Liquor Store only.

a. Was your Retail Liquor Store License issued on or before January 1, 2016?._. Q Yes 0 No

b. Are you a Colorado resident?._____________________________________^^. Q Yes 0 No

7. Has a liquor or beer license ever been issued to the applicant (including any
of the partners, if a partnership; members or manager if a Limited Liability
Company; or officers, stockholders or directors if a corporation)? If yes, identify
the name of the business and list any current financial interest in said business
including any loans to orfrom a licensee.____________________________________ ® Yes 0 No

8. Does the applicant, as listed on line 2 of this application, have legal
possession of the premises by ownership, lease or other arrangement?.____. ® Yes 0 ?

Ownership Q Lease 0 Other (Explain in detail)

a. if leased, list name of landlord and tenant, and date of expiration, exactly as they appear on
the lease:

Landlord Tenant Expires

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC

b. Is a percentage of alcohol sales included as compensation to the landlord?
If yes, complete question on page 9..__________________________________. 0 Yes (•) No

c. Attach a diagram that designates the area to be licensed in black bold outline (including
dimensions) which shows the bars, brewery, walls, partitions, entrances, exits and what each

room shall be utilized for in this business. This diagram should be no larger than QVz" X 11".

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 8 of 16



9. Who, besides the owners listed in this application (including persons, firms, partnerships, corporations,
limited liability companies) will loan or give money, inventory, furniture or equipment to or for use in this
business; or who will receive money from this business? Attach a separate sheet if necessary.

Last Name First Name

None

Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY) ;E IN or SSN Number nterest/Percentage

Last Name =irst Name

Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY) :EIN or SSN Number nterest/Percentage

Last Name ='wst Name

Date of Birth (MM/DDA/Y) =EIN or SSN Number nterest/Percentage

Attach copies of all notes and security instruments and any written agreement or details
of any oral agreement, by which any person (including partnerships, corporations, limited
liability companies, etc.) will share in the profit or gross proceeds of this establishment, and
any agreement relating to the business which is contingent or conditional in any way by
volume, profit, sales, giving of advice or consultation.

10. Optional Premises or Hotel and Restaurant Licenses with Optional Premises:
Has a local ordinance or resolution authorizing optional premises been adopted''N/A 0 Yes 0 No

Number of additional Optional Premise areas requested. (See license fee chart)

For the addition of a Sidewalk Service Area per Regulation 47-302(A)(4), include a diagram of the
service area and documentation received from the local governing body authorizing use of the
sidewalk. Documentation may include but is not limited to a statement of use, permit, easement, or

other legal permissions.

11. Liquor Licensed Drugstore (LLDS) applicants, answer the following:

a. Is there a pharmacy, licensed by the Colorado Board of Pharmacy, located

within the applicant's LLDSpremise?.___________________-__———N/A Q Yes 0 No

If "yes" a copy of license must be attached.

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 9 of 16



12. Club Liquor License applicants answer the following: Attach a copy of applicable documentation

a. Is the applicant organization operated solely for a national, social, fraternal, N/A

patriotic, political or athletic purpose and not for pecuniary gain?.__________. 0 Yes 0 No

b. Is the applicant organization a regularly chartered branch, lodge or chapter
of a national organization which is operated solely for the object of a patriotic
or fraternal organization or society, but not for pecuniary gain?.___________. ^ Yes (-) No

c. How long has the club been incorporated?..

d. Has applicant occupied an establishment for three years (three years required)
that was operated solely for the reasons stated above?. ___________________ 0 Yes 0 No

13. Brew-Pub, Distillery Pub orVintner's Restaurant applicants answer the following:

a. Has the applicant received or applied for a Federal Permit? (Copy of permit N/A
or application must be attached).______________________________________. 0 Yes 0 No

14. Campus Liquor Complex applicants answer the following:
N/A

a. Is the applicant an institution of higher education?.______________________. Q Yes 0 No

b. Is the applicant a person who contracts with the institution of higher
education to provide food services?.___________________________________. 0 Yes 0 No

If "yes" please provide a copy of the contract with the institution of higher education
to provide food services.

15. For all on-premises applicants.

a. For all Liquor Licensed Drugstores (LLDS) the Permitted Manager must also submit an
Manager Permit Application - DR 8000 and fingerprints.

Last Name of Manager First Name of Manager

Cullen IV John

16. Does this manager act as the manager of, or have a financial interest in, any

other liquor licensed establishment in the State of Colorado? If yes, provide
name, type of license and account number.._______________________________.. W Yes (J No

Name

Fall River Village LLC dba Fall River Resort - Skyview at Fall River Village
Type of License Account Number

Lodging & Entertainment (City) 03-16923

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 10 of 16



17. Related Facility - Campus Liquor Complex applicants answer the following:

a. Is the related facility located within the boundaries of the Campus N/A
Liquor Complex?.________________________________.__________________ 0 Yes 0 No

If yes, please provide a map of the geographical location within the Campus Liquor Complex.

If no, this license type is not available for issues outside the geographical location of the
Campus Liquor Complex.

b. Designated Manager for Related Facility - Campus Liquor Complex

Last Name of Manager First Name of Manager

18. Entertainment Facility License N/A

If Applicant is applying for an Entertainment Facility License, you affirm that your
business model and aligns with the statutory privileges and requirements: ._______..0 Yes 0 No

Pursuant to 44-3-103(15.5) C.R.S., an Entertainment Facility means an establishment in which
the primary business is to provide the public with sports or entertainment activities within
its licensed premises; and that, incidental to its primary business, sells and serves alcohol
beverages at retail for consumption on the licensed premises; and has sandwiches and light
snacks available for consumption on the licensed premises.

If Applicant is applying for a Lodging Facility License, you affirm that your
business model and aligns with the statutory privileges and requirements: .____..0 Yes 0 No

Pursuant to 44-3-103(29) C.R.S., a Lodging Facility means an establishment in which the
primary business is to provide the public with sleeping rooms and meeting facilities; and that
sells and serves alcohol beverages at retail for consumption on the licensed premises; and has
sandwiches and light snacks available for consumption on the licensed premises.

19. Tax Information.

a. Has the applicant, including its manager, partners, officer, directors,

stockholders, members (LLC), managing members (LLC), or any other
person with a 10% or greater financial interest in the applicant, been found
in final order of a tax agency to be delinquent in the payment of any state or
local taxes, penalties, or interest related to a business?._________________.. 0 Yes (*) No

b. Has the applicant, including its manager, partners, officer, directors,

stockholders, members (LLC), managing members (LLC), or any other
person with a 10% or greater financial interest in the applicant failed to pay
any fees or surcharges imposed pursuant to section 44-3-503, C.R.S.?.___.. Q Yes ® No

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 11 of 16



If applicant is a corporation, partnership, association or limited liability company, applicant must list all
Officers, Directors, General Partners, and Managing Members. In addition, applicant must list any

stockholders, partners, or members with ownership of 10% or more in the applicant. All persons

listed below must also attach form DR 8404-1 (Individual History Record), and make an appointment
with an approved State Vendor through their website. See application checklist, Section IV, for details.

Name

Colorado Educational and Cultural Facilities Authority

Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY)

N/A
Street Address

180 Glenarm Place, Suite 1201
3ity

Denver

state

co
71P Code

80202
3osition

Member

'/o Owned

100
Name

John Cullen IV

Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY)

Street Address

210 Twin Owl Lane
3ity

Estes Park

3tate

co
Z.\P Code

80517
Position

CEO/ Manager

/o Owned

0
-^-..t- -rn:.^.!- /n <h < ir^r^ /\/\/\

•UL^ UI L-l II LI I ^ I VII VI/ 1-^L-// I I )

Street Address

3ity state ;IP Code 3osition /o Owned

Mame Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY)

Street Address

City State ZIP Code Position % Owned

Name Date of Birth (MM/DD/YY)

Street Address

3ity state ?IP Code 3osition )/o Owned

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 12 of 16



** If applicant is owned 100% by a parent company, please list the designated principal
officer on above.

** Corporations - the President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer must be accounted for

above (Include ownership percentage if applicable)

** If total ownership percentage disclosed here does not total 100%, applicant must check this box:

Applicant affirms that no individual other than these disclosed herein owns 10% or more of the applicant and does
not have financial interest in a prohibited liquor license pursuant to Article 3 or 5, C.R.S.

I would like to apply fora Two-YearRenewal._________________________________.. Q Yes (•) No

Oath Of Applicant

I declare under penalty of perjury in the second degree that this application and all attachments are true,
correct, and complete to the best of my knowledge. I also acknowledge that it is my responsibility and the
responsibility of my agents and employees to comply with the provisions of the Colorado Liquor or Beer
and Wine Code which affect my license.

Printed Name

John Cullen IV
authorized Signature

^1/J^.
lul/Cnlk.n IV (NOT 25, 202-1 13:33 1.1ST|

Report and Approval

Title

CEO/ Manager
Date (MM/DDAT)

11/26/2024

of Local Licensing Authority (City/County)

Date application filed with local authority Date of local authority hearing (for new
license applicants; cannot be less than

|i5' fz^z^3 _| 30 days from date of application) |_^ ] & I r^r^

For Transfer Applications Only - Is the license being transferred valid?.___________.. ® Yes 0 No

The Local Licensing Authority Hereby Affirms that each person required to file DR 8404-1 (Individual
History Record) or a DR 8000 (Manager Permit) has been:

Fingerprinted

Subject to background investigation, including NCIC/CCIC check for outstanding warrants

That the local authority has conducted, or intends to conduct, an inspection of the proposed premises
to ensure that the applicant is in compliance with and aware of, liquor code provisions affecting their
class of license

(Check One)

0 Date of inspection or anticipated date

Will conduct inspection upon approval of state licensing authority

Is the Liquor Licensed Drugstore (LLDS) or Retail Liquor Store (RLS)
within 1,500 feet of another retail liquor license for off-premises sales
in a jurisdiction with a population of > 10,0000?.................................. U Yes U No

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 13 of 16



II Is the Liquor Licensed Drugstore (LLDS) or Retail Liquor Store (RLS)
within 3,000 feet of another retail liquor license for off-premises sales
in a jurisdiction with a population of < 10,0000? .................................. 0 Yes 0 No

NOTE: The distance shall be determined by a radius measurement that begins at the principal
doorway of the LLDS/RLS premises for which the application is being made and ends at the
principal doorway of the Licensed LLDS/RLS.

Does the Liquor-Licensed Drugstore (LLDS) have at least twenty
percent (20%) of the applicant's gross annual income derived from the
sale of food, during the prior twelve (12) month period?............................ 0 Yes 0 No

The foregoing application has been examined; and the premises, business to be conducted, and
character of the applicant are satisfactory. We do report that such license, if granted, will meet the

reasonable requirements of the neighborhood and the desires of the adult inhabitants, and will
comply with the provisions of Title 44, Article 4 or 3, C.R.S,, and Liquor Rules. Therefore, this

application is approved.

Local Licensing Authority Approves this license for a two-year renewal.___________. Q Yes 0 No

If "No", please cite the law, regulation, local ordinance or resolution that gives the local licensing

authority the ability to deny the applicant and grounds for denial. Also, please provide any and all
ii 1 v v^^^iy^i.1 v v^ i v^^/v/i L^ij t^til^t ^tMiiinni-n.i»-«i.iv\^ ^i v-nn i in n-<| t-iui.n^ii t.i H-AI. i v^ n-4 i.v-o \j i j i,

Proof of Violation

,t;t,, ll»;» ^l^^'.^l
\.it y LI ii<-> ^'^1 i n-41.

Local Licensing Authority for Felephone Number 0 Town, City

0 County

:>rinted Name mie

Signature Date (MM/DD/YY)

3rinted Name Fitle

Signature Date (MM/DDA/Y)

DR 8404 (08/08/24) Page 14 of 16



DR 8495 (02/16/24)
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liquor Enforcement Division
PO BOX 17087
Denver CO 80217-0087
(303) 205-2300

Tax Check Authorization, Waiver, and Request to Release Information

John Cullen IV

am signing this Tax Check Authorization, Waiver and Request to Release Information (hereinafter

"Waiver") on behalf of

(the "Applicant/Licensee")

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC

to permit the Colorado Department of Revenue and any other state or local taxing authority to release
information and documentation that may otherwise be confidential, as provided below. If I am signing
this Waiver for someone other than myself, including on behalf of a business entity, I certify that I have
the authority to execute this Waiver on behalf of the Applicant/Licensee.

The Executive Director of the Colorado Department of Revenue is the State Licensing Authority, and
oversees the Colorado Liquor Enforcement Division as his or her agents, clerks, and employees. The

information and documentation obtained pursuant to this Waiver may be used in connection with the
Applicant/Licensee's liquor license application and ongoing licensure by the state and local licensing
authorities. The Colorado Liquor Code, section 44-3-101. et seq. ("Liquor Code"), and the Colorado

Liquor Rules, 1 CCR 203-2 ("Liquor Rules"), require compliance with certain tax obligations, and set
forth the investigative, disciplinary and licensure actions the state and local licensing authorities may
take for violations of the Liquor Code and Liquor Rules, including failure to meet tax reporting and
payment obligations.

The Waiver is made pursuant to section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., and any other law, regulation, resolution

or ordinance concerning the confidentiality of tax information, or any document, report or return filed

in connection with state or local taxes. This Waiver shall be valid until the expiration or revocation
of a license, or until both the state and local licensing authorities take final action to approve or deny
any application(s) for the renewal of the license, whichever is later. Applicant/Licensee agrees to
execute a new waiver for each subsequent licensing period in connection with the renewal of any

license, if requested.

By signing below, Applicant/Licensee requests that the Colorado Department of Revenue and any
other state or local taxing authority or agency in the possession of tax documents or information,

release information and documentation to the Colorado Liquor Enforcement Division, and is duly
authorized employees, to act as theApplicant's/Licensee's duly authorized representative under
section 39-21-113(4), C.R.S., solely to allow the state and local licensing authorities, andtheirduly
authorized employees, to investigate compliance with the Liquor Code and Liquor Rules. Applicant/
Licensee authorizes the state and local licensing authorities, their duly authorized employees, and
their legal representatives, to use the information and documentation obtained using this Waiver in any
administrative or judicial action regarding the application or license.

Page 15 of 16



Name (Individual/Business)

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education LLC

Social Security Number/Tax Identification Number Home Phone Number

Street Address

Business/Work Phone Number

(970) 577-4000

333 Wonderview Avenue

3ity

Estes Park

State

co
ZIP Code

80517

Printed name of person signing on behalf of the ApplicanVLicensee

John Cullen IV

Applicant/Licensee's Signature (Signature authorizing the disclosure of confidential tax information) Date Signed

^ZZ^L_
ol/C'ullen IV (Nov 26. 2024 13:33 MST|

11/26/2024

Privacy Act Statement

Providina vour Social Securitv Number is voluntary and no riaht. benefit or orivileae orovided bv law will
be denied as a result of refusal to disclose it. § 7 of Privacy Act, 5 USCS § 552a (note).

DR 8495 (02/16/24) Page 16 of 16



Area Excluded

from license:

Separately
licensed by Post

Chicken - Hotel <S

Restaurant Liquoi

License (State # -

03-14762)

-,- ._gTCFIM-LOTl

Stanley Partnership for Art Cultire and Education, LLC, d/b/a The Stanley Hotel

333 East Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517



Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC, d/b/a The Stanley Hotel

= Alcohol Storage

—--1 r.,r-
i

WHISKEY VAULT
TENANT - 600 SF !

^r
1 n

-0 it

<-;1"

^n...

W ^ M
311
3U
•,r

-.--^

TOURS

COFFEE SHOP
TENANT-300SF

CCATINff ARFA

The Stanley Hotel
Basement Floor Diagram

333 E. Wonderview Ave., Estes Park, CO 80517

N

A



= Alcohol Storage

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC, d/b/a The Stanley Hotel

Concert Hall Basement

333 E. Wonderview Ave., Estes

Park, CO 80517

N

A



Parking

IDom

I Dons

Exec.

Office

Stage]
LTJ

MacGregor
Room

Cascades
Restaurant

Cascades
Patio

Elevator

Billiard
Room

Pinion
Room

Front Desk

Business Center
Fitness Center

(Lower Level}

Gift Shop

Lobby

Veranda

Music
Room

0
a

101

w
01

0
I"

w
a>

Presidential
Cottage

<^Styt&e^^9tet)

Swimming
Pool

Ranch

..Q
Manor

Hall

Elevator

Lobby

Veranda

l Parking

Steamer's
(lower level)

Library
Room

%^w%w<^

The Parlour Spa
(lower level)

Concert
Porch Lobby Hall

(^e^ec^^^

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC

333 Wondemew Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517



= Alcohol Storage/Service

Parking

Exec.

Office

zy>Vw
Stage!

MacGregor
Room

Cascades
Restaurant

Cascades
Patio

Elevator

Billiard
Room

Pinion
Room

so"Front Desk Gift Shop

Business Center

Wliiskey -Tault in Lobby
lower level

Veranda

Music

Room

Ranch

.Q
Manor

Hal!

]Bmnch
!& Co

Elevator

Lobby

Veranda

j Parking
Steamer's
(tower level)

levf T-fotel

Swimming
Pool

Library
Room

T^fanor T-fouse^

The Parlour Spa
(tower level)

Liquo)' storage

in basement

Concert
Porch Lobby Hall

s

Veranda

Concert Patio

Concert fHai

Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC
333 Wondemew Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517



Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC

333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517

Evacuation Plan
Second Floor

You Are Here

Exit Path

Stairs

Extinguisher

IN CASE OF EMERGENCY DO NOT USE THE ELEVATOR
PLEASE USE THE EXIT NEAREST YOU



Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC

333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517

Evacuation Plan
Third Floor

334

332

330

328

326

324

322

320

318

336

338 340 329 327 325

323

306

308

310

312

304 302 301 303 1303

±
305

309

311

314

316

You Are Here

Exit Path

Stairs

Extinguisher

321

319

317

315

313

N

IN CASE OF EMERGENCY DO NOT USE THE ELEVATOR
PLEASE USE THE EXIT NEAREST YOU



otdiucy r ai LHCI >iinp lui ^-v.i L V^UILU-IC anu- J^UU^CILIUH, -L^^

333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517

Evacuation Plan
Fourth Floor

428 413

426

424

422

420

418

416

414

430 432 HSKP 417 415

404

406

408

410

402 401 403 405 HSKP

407

412

You Are Here

Exit Path

Stairs

Extinguisher N

IN CASE OF EMERGENCY DO NOT USE THE ELEVATOR
PLEASE USE THE EXIT NEAREST YOU



Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC
333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517

Evacuation Plan
MANOR FIRST FLOOR

1 HANDICAP h
EXIT

^ VERANDAH

IDOWNh

LOBBY

MANOR HALL

r
•

0
ft

You Are Here

Exit Path

Pull Station

Extingulsher

Stairs

IN CASE OF EMERGENCY
DO NOT USE THE ELEVATOR
PLEASE USE THE EXIT NEAREST YOU



Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC

333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517

Evacuation Plan
MANOR SECOND FLOOR

1211

DLXQ

1212

SUPQ

1213

TS

1215

SUPQ

1217

SUPQ

1219

SUPQ

1221

SUPQ

ft

ft
-s

1210

DLXQ 1209

DLXQ

UPi

lal c

a|
1-

1214

STDQ

1216

STDQ

1218

STCX3

1220

STOQ

1222

STDQ

HSKP ELEV

1201
DLXQ

STDQ

1203

DLXQ

1208

STDQ

ft

1205

SUPQ

1206

SUPO

1207

SUPQ

•

la

ft

You Are Here

Exit Path

Pull Station

Extinguisher

Stairs

IN CASE OF EMERGENCY
DO NOT USE THE ELEVATOR
PLEASE USE THE EXIT NEAREST YOU



Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and Education, LLC
333 Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517

Evacuation Plan
MANOR THIRD FLOOR

1303

xs

1304

SUPQ

1306

SUPQ

1308

SUPQ

1310

TS

"^- DOWN "^ §

HSK

_L

ft
B
4 EXIT

130i

STD1

m
STDI

130!

TS

• You Are Here

Exit Path

IQI pull Station

Extinguisher

Stairs

I

»

LOBBY

ELEV 151

1302

xs

1301

xs

r
IN CASE OF EMERGENCY
DO NOT USE THE ELEVATOR
PLEASE USE THE EXIT NEAREST YOU



DR 8404-1 (03/06/24)
COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
Liquor Enforcement Division
PO Box 17087
Denver CO 80217-0087
(303) 205-2300

Individual History Record

To be completed by the following persons, as applicable: sole proprietors; general partners regardless
of percentage ownership, and limited partners owning 10% or more of the partnership; all principal
officers of a corporation, all directors of a corporation, and any stockholder of a corporation owning
10% or more of the outstanding stock; managing members or officers of a limited liability company, and
members owning 10% or more of the company; and any intended registered manager of Hotel and
Restaurant, Tavern and Lodging and Entertainment class of retail license

Notice: This individual history record requires information that is necessary for the licensing
investigation or inquiry. All questions must be answered in their entirety or the license application may
be delayed or denied. If a question is not applicable, please indicate so by "N/A". Any deliberate
misrepresentation or material omission may jeopardize the license application. (Please attach a
separate sheet if necessary to enable you to answer questions completely)

Name of Business

The Stanley Hotel
Home Phone Number Cellular Number

Your Full Name (last, first, middle)

Cullen IV, John
List any other names you have used

None
Mailing address (if different from residence)

333 E. Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517
Email Address

jcullen@grandheritage.com

1. List current residence address. Include any previous addresses within the last five years. (Attach

separate sheet if necessary)

Current Street and Number Current City, State, ZIP

1210 Twin Owl Lane I |Estes
From: To:

210 Twin Owl Lane EstesPark,C080517

September 2019 Present
3revious Street and Number 3revious City, State, ZIP

From: fo:

Page 1 of 6



Individual History Record (Continued)

2. List all employment within the last five years. Include any self-employment. (Attach separate sheet
if necessary)

Name of Employer or Business

Stanley Hotel
Address (Street, Number, City, State, ZIP)

333 E. Wonderview Avenue, Estes Park, CO 80517
Position Held

President
From: To:

1989 Present
Name of Employer or Business

Address (Street, Number, City, State, ZIP)

Position Held

^ mm* Tn-

Name of Employer or Business

Address (Street, Number, City, State, ZIP)

Position Held

From: ro:

3. List the name(s) of relatives working in or holding a financial interest in the Colorado alcohol
beverage industry.

Name of Relative Relationship to You:

None
Position Held \lame of Licensee

Name of Relative relationship to You:

Position Held ^ame of Licensee

DR 8404-1 (03/06/24) Page 2 of 6



Individual History Record (Continued)

Name of Relative relationship to You:

3osition Held ^Jame of Licensee

Mame of Relative relationship to You:

Position Held ^Jame of Licensee

4. Have you ever applied for, held, or had an interest in a Colorado Liquor or
Beer License, or loaned money, furniture, fixtures, equipment or inventory to

any licensee?..

(If yes, answer in detail.)

Yes No

1) The Stanley Hotel - Estes Park -12-72337-0000 - Since 2006.
2) Fall River Resort - Skyview at Fall River Village - Estes Park - 03-16923 - Since
2022.

5. Have you ever received a violation notice, suspension, or revocation for a

liquor law violation, or have you applied for or been denied a liquor or beer
license anywhere in the United States?..

(If yes, answer in detail.)
Yes No

6. Have you ever been convicted of a crime or received a suspended sentence,

deferred sentence, or forfeited bail for any offense in criminal or military court
or do you have any charges pending?..

(If yes, answer in detail.)
D Yes No

7. Are you currently under probation (supervised or unsupervised), parole, or

completing the requirements of a deferred sentence?..

(If yes, answer in detail.)

d Yes No

DR 8404-1 (03/06/24) Page 3 of 6



Individual History Record (Continued)

8. Have you ever had any professional license suspended, revoked, or denied?.-., D Yes E®] No

(If yes, answer in detail.)

Personal and Financial Information

Unless otherwise provided by law, the personal information required in this section will be treated as
confidential. The personal information required in this section is solely for identification purposes.

Date of Birth _ Social Security Number Place of Birth

Maryland

U.S. Citizen [•] Yes Q No
If Naturalized, state where When

Mame of District Court Naturalization Certificate Number Date of Certification

lfjan_Ajien, Give Alien's Registration Card Number
1 I

Permanent Residence Card Number

Height Weight

6'3" 200
4air Color

Brown

Eye Color

Brown

Sender

Male

Do you have a current Driver's License/ID? If so, give number and state.

Driver's License Number Driver's License State

Yes No

MD

Financial Information

9. Total purchase price or investment being made by the applying entity,
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, other...

$11,154.00

10, List the total amount of the personal investment, made by the person
listed on page 1 in this business including any notes, loans,cash,
sen/ices or equipment, operating capital, stock purchases or fees

paid..____________________________________^____________________,
0

NOTE: If corporate investment only, please skip to and complete question 12
NOTE: Question 10 should reflect the total of questions 11 and 13

DR 8404-1 (03/06/24) Page 4 of 6



Personal and Financial Information (Continued)

11. Provide details of the personal investment described in question 10. You must account for all of
the sources of this investment. (Attach a separate sheet if needed)

Fype: Cash, Services or Equipment

N/A
\ccountType

Bank Name Amount

Fype: Cash, Services or Equipment Account Type

Bank Name Amount

Fype: Cash, Services or Equipment Account Type

Bank Name Amount

type: Cash, Services or Equipment Account Type

Bank Name Amount

12. Provide details of the corporate investment described in question 9. You must account for all of the
sources of this investment. (Attach a separate sheet if needed)

type: Cash, Services or Equipment

Bonds - Corporate Funds

-oans

N/A
\ccountType

Checking
Bank Name Amount

UMB Bank $11,154.00
Fype: Cash, Services or Equipment _oans account Type

Bank Name amount

Type: Cash, Sen/ices or Equipment -oans \ccount Type

Bank Name Xmount

13. Loan Information (Attach copies of all notes or loans)

Name of Lender Address

N/A
term Security amount

DR 8404-1 (03/06/24) Page 5 of 6



Personal and Financial Information (Continued)

Mame of Lender address

Ferm security amount

Name of Lender \ddress

Ferm Security amount

Name of Lender address

term Security 'Vnount

Oath of Applicant

I declare under penalty of perjury that this application and all attachments are true, correct, and
complete to the best of my knowledge.

AIT+I^^^->^^ 0;<-in-i+i

Al/^_
buln<Cullen IV (Nov 26, .1024 13:33 MST)

Print Signature

John Cullen IV
Title Date (MM/DDA/Y)

CEO/ Manager 11/26/2024

DR 8404-1 (03/06/24) Page 6 of 6



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Memo 
To: Honorable Mayor Hall & Board of Trustees 

Through: Town Administrator Machalek  

From: Jackie Williamson, Town Clerk 

Department: Town Clerk 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Initiated Ordinance Petition – To Amend the Estes Park Development Code 

regarding Rezonings and all Planned Unit Development Applications 

Type: Public Hearing 

Objective: 
Present an Initiated Ordinance filed with the Town Clerk’s Office to amend the Estes 

Park Development Code regarding Re-Zonings and/or all Planned Unit Developments 

(PUDs) Applications. 

Present Situation: 
On November 18, 2024 a letter was sent to the petitioners, James and Kristine Poppitz, 

approving the form of the petition to address development applications, which allowed the 

petition to be circulated.  Upon approval of the form of the petition, the Town Clerk 

contacted the Larimer County Elections Office and determined the total registered 

electors within Estes Park.  State statute 31-11-104 requires a petition to be signed by at 

least 5% of the registered electors; the total number of signatures required was 

established at 246. 

On May 16, 2025, the Town Clerk received 43 signed petition sections containing 405 

signatures.  The Town Clerk reviewed the signatures to verify the registration of the 

individual against the voter registration list supplied to the Town by the Larimer County 

Elections Office.  A preliminary statement of sufficiency was issued on June 13, 2025 



certifying the petition was signed by 5% or 246 registered voters within the Town of Estes 

Park.   

Total number of signatures submitted:  405 

Total number of signatures reviewed  405 

 Total number of signatures rejected:  144 

 Total number of signatures accepted:  261 

Number of signatures required:   246 

Pursuant to 31-11-110 CRS, a 40-day protest period is provided from the date the 

petition was submitted (May 16, 2025), and if no protest of the initiated ordinance 

petition is received within the 40-days (June 25, 2025), a final determination of petition 

sufficiency is established.   

Proposal:  
Per 31-11-104 (1) CRS, the Board of Trustees within 20 days from the final statement of 

sufficiency (June 25, 2025) must either: (1) adopt, without alteration, the citizen initiated 

ordinance as proposed, Ordinance 11-25, or (2) refer the Initiated Ordinance to the 

registered electors of the municipality to an election no less than 60 days (August 24, 

2025) and not more than 150 days (November 22, 2025) days. 

If the Board refers the ordinance to an election, staff has determined the only viable 

option would be to join the coordinate general election on November 4, 2025.  This is 

due to a number of factors including the need for 90 days (on or after October 7, 2025) 

to conduct a special mail ballot election and the statutory requirement limiting special 

elections from occurring within 32 days before or after a general election in November 

(on or before September 30, 2025).  

Advantages:  
None. 

Disadvantages:  
None. 

 



 
Action Recommended:  
Staff does not have a recommendation as this is a legislative action requiring Town 

Board direction. 

Finance/Resource Impact:  
The Town would incur the cost to codify the ordinance if passed by the Town Board 

which is minimal and funds for codification are budgeted annually. 

Staff has discussed joining the general election in November with the Larimer County 

Election offices and have received an estimate of approximately $6,000 to $20,000 

pending if the State and/or the County have questions on the ballot. 

Level of Public Interest:  
Medium.  There has been an increase interest in development related issues as well as 

engagement from Preserve Estes Park. 

Sample Motions:  

Motion #1 

I move to adopt Ordinance 11-25. 

Motion #2 if applicable (If the Ordinance is not adopted the following motion needs to be 

made.) 

I move to approve Resolution 70-25 referring Initiated Ordinance 11-25 to the 

coordinated general election on November 4, 2025. 

Attachments:  
1. Ordinance 11-25 

2. Certification of Petition Sufficiency 

3. Resolution 70-25 



ORDINANCE NO. 11-25 

CITIZEN INITIATED ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ESTES PARK 
DEVELOPMENT CODE REGARDING REZONINGS AND 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2025, an Initiated Ordinance Petition was filed with the 
Town Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2025, the Town Clerk presented a Statement of Sufficiency 
to the Town Board stating that the Initiated Ordinance Petition has the requisite number 
of signatures; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees have reviewed the Initiated Ordinance Petition. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: All applications, motions, or requests made for all re-zonings and/or all 
Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) in Estes Park, Colorado will not be approved without 
written approval by the record owner(s) of the subject property/properties and two-thirds 
(2/3) of the record owner(s) of all properties five hundred feet (500’) or less from the 
outermost boundaries of the subject property/properties. 

Section 2: This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced thirty (30) days after 
its adoption and publication. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Estes Park, 
Colorado this ____ day of _______________, 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO 

By:  
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the Board 
of Trustees on the   day of   , 2025 and published by title in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the Town of Estes Park, Colorado, on the   day of 

, 2025, all as required by the Statutes of the State of Colorado. 

Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



RESOLUTION 70-25 

TO REFER CITIZEN INITIATED ORDINANCE 11-25 TO THE LARIMER COUNTY 
COORDIANTED ELECTION ON NOVEMBER 4, 2025 

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2025, an Initiated Ordinance Petition was filed with the 
Town Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2025, the Town Clerk issued a Statement of Sufficiency 
and presented the petitions to the Town Board on July 8, 2025 stating that the Initiated 
Ordinance Petition has the requisite number of signatures; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees have reviewed the Initiated Ordinance Petition; 
and 

WHEREAS, following said review the Board of Trustees did not adopt the Initiated 
Ordinance Petition as presented. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO: 

1. Initiated Ordinance 11-25 is hereby referred to the registered electors of the
Town of Estes Park, Colorado for the General Election with Larimer County
on November 4, 2025.

2. The Town Clerk is hereby ordered to publish forthwith the Initiated
Ordinance.

3. The ballot question shall read as follows:

Shall an ordinance be adopted which states that all applications, motions
or requests for rezonings and/or all planned unit developments (PUDs)
will not be approved without written approval by the record owner(s) of
the subject property/properties and two-thirds (2/3) of the record owner(s)
of all properties five hundred feet (500 feet) or less from the outermost
boundaries of the subject property/properties?

YES ____ 
NO ____ 

DATED this  day of , 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 3



PUBLIC COMMENT RECEIVED ON 7/2/2025 

Board of Trustees Public Comment
Name: Karen Randinitis

Stance on Item: Against

Agenda Item Title: [object Object]

Public Comment:

The process for the development code has just begun with opportunities for public input. Seems like this
can be adjusted through that process instead of spending tens of thousands of dollars on an election. Is
there anyway this can be tabled until after the new development code is accepted?

File Upload

Please note, all information provided in this form is considered public record and will be included as permanent record for
the item which it references.

Files are limited to PDF or JPG.

25 MB limit. Video files cannot be saved to the final packet and must be transcribed before submitting.



Town Clerk <townclerk@estes.org>

For Public Comment
1 message

Daniel Scace <daniel.scace@sbcglobal.net> Mon, Jul 7, 2025 at 1:44 PM
To: "townclerk@estes.org" <townclerk@estes.org>

To say we were disappointed by the Town Board vote on June 24
regarding the rezoning of 685 Peak View is an understatement. The
overwhelming majority were opposed to this rezoning, but that didn’t
matter then, and perhaps the opinion of the impacted citizens within
Estes Park will never matter again on issues like this. Look at the recent
history of such requests to increase density and you’ll see that increasing
density, allegedly because of the “need” (maybe more greed!) has won
the day.

In the case of rezoning 685 Peak View, those in favor of the rezoning
mostly represented special interests in Habitat for Humanity (don’t get
us wrong, we’re not anti-Habitat at all), or more work with the
developer, while those opposed lived in the affected area of the proposed
rezoning. I know we all have our own “spin” on these issues, but the
“Habitat for Humanity”, and “Change is Hard” plea that apparently
convinced the Board to approve the change brings to mind what is really
hard. Yes, change is hard, but the hard change in this case would have
been to deviate from the local, state and national trend that increased
density is better, that these small changes are “acceptable”. The easy
thing was to change the affected area forever with a vote to approve the
change in zoning and increase density beyond the current zoning and
long history. It’s happening everywhere. Little impacts on the
environment, traffic, wildlife patterns, drainage, etc. can easily be
rationalized to further solve the “need” (greed). That seems to be a
rather short-range perspective when a long-range perspective is what’s
needed for the long term good of this land we live on. The incremental
changes go on, and on, until the point that things get bad. At that point



does saying “Oh shucks, we’ve gone too far!” make a difference? It’s
the slippery slope thing, and we’re rapidly headed down it.

Which brings us to the upcoming ballot initiative that the Town Board
will consider at their next meeting. These initiatives are an attempt to
put a little power back in the hands of the landowners most affected by
proposed changes in zoning in their neighborhoods. Is power to the
people a bad thing? Should you have a say in what goes on next door to
you? If a development is considered acceptable, development will not be
inhibited. I encourage the Town Board to approve this initiative, adopt
the proposed changes to the Code, and let the ongoing Code revision
process take its course. That may be another “change is hard” thing for
some Board members, and it would take courage to go there. If you vote
that way, folks won’t be able to gripe about funding a special election,
and, boy, adopting it this way will really get citizens involved,
something you’re always publicly asking for.
Dan & Tami Scace
606 Longs Drive

Dan Scace
860-912-5344 (Cell)
970-480-1819 (Home)
Life is good!



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Memo 
To: Honorable Mayor Hall & Board of Trustees 

Through: Town Administrator Machalek  

From: Jackie Williamson, Town Clerk 

Department: Town Clerk 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Initiated Ordinance Petition – To Repeal Section 11.4 and Associated 

Building Height Limits in Section 4.3 of the Estes Park Development Code 

Type: Public Hearing 

Objective: 
Present an Initiated Ordinance filed with the Town Clerk’s Office to repeal the Estes 

Park Development Code section 11.4 and associated building height limits in section 

4.3 as outlined in the petition. 

Present Situation: 
On November 18, 2024 a letter was sent to the petitioners, James and Kristine Poppitz, 

approving the form of the petition to address development applications, which allowed the 

petition to be circulated.  Upon approval of the form of the petition, the Town Clerk 

contacted the Larimer County Elections Office and determined the total registered 

electors within Estes Park.  State statute 31-11-104 requires a petition to be signed by at 

least 5% of the registered electors; the total number of signatures required was 

established at 246. 

On May 16, 2025, the Town Clerk received 43 signed petition sections containing 393 

signatures.  The Town Clerk reviewed the signatures to verify the registration of the 

individual against the voter registration list supplied to the Town by the Larimer County 

Elections Office.  A preliminary statement of sufficiency was issued on June 13, 2025 



certifying the petition was signed by 5% or 246 registered voters within the Town of Estes 

Park.   

Total number of signatures submitted:  393 

Total number of signatures reviewed  393 

 Total number of signatures rejected:  112 

 Total number of signatures accepted:  281 

Number of signatures required:   246 

Pursuant to 31-11-110 CRS, a 40-day protest period is provided from the date the 

petition was submitted (May 16, 2025), and if no protest of the initiated ordinance 

petition is received within the 40-days (June 25, 2025), a final determination of petition 

sufficiency is established.   

Proposal:  
Per 31-11-104 (1) CRS, the Board of Trustees within 20 days from the final statement of 

sufficiency (June 25, 2025) must either: (1) adopt, without alteration, the citizen initiated 

ordinance as proposed, Ordinance 12-25, or (2) refer the Initiated Ordinance to the 

registered electors of the municipality to an election no less than 60 days (August 24, 

2025) and not more than 150 days (November 22, 2025) days. 

If the Board refers the ordinance to an election, staff has determined the only viable 

option would be to join the coordinate general election on November 4, 2025.  This is 

due to a number of factors including the need for 90 days (on or after October 7, 2025) 

to conduct a special mail ballot election and the statutory requirement limiting special 

elections from occurring within 32 days before or after a general election in November 

(on or before September 30, 2025).  

Advantages:  
None. 

Disadvantages:  
None. 

 



 
Action Recommended:  
Staff does not have a recommendation as this is a legislative action requiring Town 

Board direction. 

Finance/Resource Impact:  
The Town would incur the cost to codify the ordinance if passed by the Town Board 

which is minimal and funds for codification are budgeted annually. 

Staff has discussed joining the general election in November with the Larimer County 

Election offices and have received an estimate of approximately $6,000 to $20,000 

pending if the State and/or the County have questions on the ballot. 

Level of Public Interest:  
Medium.  There has been an increase interest in development related issues as well as 

engagement from Preserve Estes Park. 

Sample Motions:  

Motion #1 

I move to adopt Ordinance 12-25. 

Motion #2 if applicable (If the Ordinance is not adopted the following motion needs to be 

made.) 

I move to approve Resolution 71-25 referring Initiated Ordinance 12-25 to the 

coordinated general election on November 4, 2025. 

Attachments:  
1. Ordinance 12-25 

2. Certification of Petition Sufficiency 

3. Resolution 71-25 



ORDINANCE NO. 12-25 

CITIZEN INITIATED ORDINANCE TO REPEAL SECTION 11.4 
AND ASSOCIATED BUILDING HEIGHT LIMITS IN SECTION 

4.3 OF THE ESTES PARK DEVELOPMENT CODE  

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2025, an Initiated Ordinance Petition was filed with the 
Town Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2025, the Town Clerk presented a Statement of Sufficiency 
to the Town Board stating that the Initiated Ordinance Petition has the requisite number 
of signatures; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees have reviewed the Initiated Ordinance Petition. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: Estes Park Development Code Section 11.4 - ATTAINABLE/ 
WORKFORCE HOUSING DENSITY BONUS and associated building height limits in 
§ 4.3 – Residential Zoning Districts are hereby repealed.

Section 2: This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced thirty (30) days after 
its adoption and publication. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Estes Park, 
Colorado this ____ day of _______________, 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO 

By:  
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the Board 
of Trustees on the   day of   , 2025 and published by title in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the Town of Estes Park, Colorado, on the   day of 

, 2025, all as required by the Statutes of the State of Colorado. 

Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



RESOLUTION 71-25 

TO REFER CITIZEN INITIATED ORDINANCE 12-25 TO THE LARIMER COUNTY 
GENERAL ELECTION ON NOVEMBER 4, 2025 

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2025, an Initiated Ordinance Petition was filed with the 
Town Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2025, the Town Clerk issued a Statement of Sufficiency 
and presented the petitions to the Town Board on July 8, 2025 stating that the Initiated 
Ordinance Petition has the requisite number of signatures; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees have reviewed the Initiated Ordinance Petition; 
and 

WHEREAS, following said review the Board of Trustees did not adopt the Initiated 
Ordinance Petition as presented. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO: 

1. Initiated Ordinance 12-25 is hereby referred to the registered electors of the
Town of Estes Park, Colorado for the General Election with Larimer County
on November 4, 2025.

2. The Town Clerk is hereby ordered to publish forthwith the Initiated
Ordinance.

3. The ballot question shall read as follows:

Shall an ordinance be adopted which states that section 11.4 of the Estes
Park Development Code (which provides density bonuses in the RM
Multi-Family Residential zoning district for attainable and workforce
housing for persons living and/or working in the Estes Valley), and
associated building height limits in section 4.3 - Residential Zoning
Districts, are hereby repealed?

YES ____ 
NO ____ 

DATED this  day of , 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 3



PUBLIC COMMENT RECEIVED ON 7/2/2025 

Board of Trustees Public Comment
Name: Karen R

Stance on Item: Against

Agenda Item Title: [object Object]

Public Comment:

The process for the development code has just begun with opportunities for public input. Seems like this
can be adjusted through that process instead of spending tens of thousands of dollars on an election. Is
there anyway this can be tabled until after the new development code is accepted?

File Upload

Please note, all information provided in this form is considered public record and will be included as permanent record for
the item which it references.

Files are limited to PDF or JPG.

25 MB limit. Video files cannot be saved to the final packet and must be transcribed before submitting.



PUBLIC COMMENT RECEIVED ON 7/6/2025 

Board of Trustees Public Comment
Name: Frank Theis

Stance on Item: Neutral

Agenda Item Title: [object Object]

Public Comment:

0

File Upload

Please note, all information provided in this form is considered public record and will be included as permanent record for
the item which it references.

Files are limited to PDF or JPG.

Document_2025-07-06_133522.pdf 1008.21KB
25 MB limit. Video files cannot be saved to the final packet and must be transcribed before submitting.





Town Clerk <townclerk@estes.org>

For Public Comment
1 message

Daniel Scace <daniel.scace@sbcglobal.net> Mon, Jul 7, 2025 at 1:44 PM
To: "townclerk@estes.org" <townclerk@estes.org>

To say we were disappointed by the Town Board vote on June 24
regarding the rezoning of 685 Peak View is an understatement. The
overwhelming majority were opposed to this rezoning, but that didn’t
matter then, and perhaps the opinion of the impacted citizens within
Estes Park will never matter again on issues like this. Look at the recent
history of such requests to increase density and you’ll see that increasing
density, allegedly because of the “need” (maybe more greed!) has won
the day.

In the case of rezoning 685 Peak View, those in favor of the rezoning
mostly represented special interests in Habitat for Humanity (don’t get
us wrong, we’re not anti-Habitat at all), or more work with the
developer, while those opposed lived in the affected area of the proposed
rezoning. I know we all have our own “spin” on these issues, but the
“Habitat for Humanity”, and “Change is Hard” plea that apparently
convinced the Board to approve the change brings to mind what is really
hard. Yes, change is hard, but the hard change in this case would have
been to deviate from the local, state and national trend that increased
density is better, that these small changes are “acceptable”. The easy
thing was to change the affected area forever with a vote to approve the
change in zoning and increase density beyond the current zoning and
long history. It’s happening everywhere. Little impacts on the
environment, traffic, wildlife patterns, drainage, etc. can easily be
rationalized to further solve the “need” (greed). That seems to be a
rather short-range perspective when a long-range perspective is what’s
needed for the long term good of this land we live on. The incremental
changes go on, and on, until the point that things get bad. At that point



does saying “Oh shucks, we’ve gone too far!” make a difference? It’s
the slippery slope thing, and we’re rapidly headed down it.

Which brings us to the upcoming ballot initiative that the Town Board
will consider at their next meeting. These initiatives are an attempt to
put a little power back in the hands of the landowners most affected by
proposed changes in zoning in their neighborhoods. Is power to the
people a bad thing? Should you have a say in what goes on next door to
you? If a development is considered acceptable, development will not be
inhibited. I encourage the Town Board to approve this initiative, adopt
the proposed changes to the Code, and let the ongoing Code revision
process take its course. That may be another “change is hard” thing for
some Board members, and it would take courage to go there. If you vote
that way, folks won’t be able to gripe about funding a special election,
and, boy, adopting it this way will really get citizens involved,
something you’re always publicly asking for.
Dan & Tami Scace
606 Longs Drive

Dan Scace
860-912-5344 (Cell)
970-480-1819 (Home)
Life is good!



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Memo 
To: Honorable Mayor Hall & Board of Trustees 

Through: Town Administrator Machalek  

From: Reuben Bergsten, Utilities Director & Greg White, Special Counsel 

Department: Utilities, Water Division 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Ordinance 13-25 Replacing Ordinance 07-22 Considering the Inclusion of 

Certain Properties Located within the Town of Estes Park into Northern 

Colorado Water Conservancy’s Municipal Subdistrict 

Type: Public Hearing 

Objective: 
Compliance with Northern Colorado Water Conservancy's Municipal Subdistrict's 

(Subdistrict) rules and regulations. 

Present Situation:  
The Town's municipal water system uses Windy Gap water which the Subdistrict 

oversees. The Subdistrict's rules and regulations require all properties receiving 

Windy Gap water be included in the Subdistrict. Certain properties using the Town's 

municipal water system were inadvertently not included in the Subdistrict. Pursuant 

to Colorado State Statute, the Town Board may include these properties into the 

Subdistrict by passing an ordinance consenting to the inclusion of the specific 

properties. 

Proposal:  
The adoption of this ordinance will bring the water customers within the Town's 

boundary into compliance with Subdistrict's rules and regulations and allow the required 

public records to be filed with the County Recorder. 



This ordinance is the first step in the process to include all water customers' properties 

into the Subdistrict. Staff is working on the second step which will bring the remaining 

water customers' properties, outside the Town's boundary, into the Subdistrict. 

All costs to include these properties into the Subdistrict are in the approved Water 

Division budget. 

Advantages:  
Passage of this ordinance will allow the Town to continue providing Windy Gap 

water to its water customers in compliance with the Subdistrict's requirements. 

Eventually, all properties receiving Town water will be included in the Subdistrict, as 

required by the Subdistrict's rules and regulations. 

Disadvantages:  
None. 

Action Recommended:  
Adoption of the ordinance. 

Finance/Resource Impact:  
Fees required to include these properties in the Subdistrict are in the approved 

budgeted, Project code NCWCD, Account# 503-7000-580.35-54, $79,048. 

Level of Public Interest:  
Low. 

Sample Motions:  
I move for the adoption of Ordinance 13-25. 

Attachments:  
1. Ordinance 13-25 

2. Exhibit A to Ordinance 13-25 



ORDINANCE NO. 13-25 

AN ORDINANCE CONSENTING TO THE INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 
PROPERTIES LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK INTO THE 

MUNICIPAL SUBDISTRICT, NORTHERN COLORADO 
WATER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Town of Estes Park is the holder of three (3) units of 
Windy Gap water under the Rules and Regulations of the Municipal Subdistrict, 
Northern Colorado Conservancy District (the "Subdistrict"); and 

WHEREAS, certain properties located within the Town of Estes Park 
have inadvertently not been included within the boundaries of the Subdistrict; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Town of Estes Park to consent to the 
inclusion of said properties within the Subdistrict, pursuant to the provisions of 
section 37-45- 136(3.6) C.R.S; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board wishes to use the provisions of section 37-
45- 136(3.6) C.R.S., to consent to the inclusion of those properties within the
Subdistrict, which properties were not included at the time of annexation of the
property to the Town of Estes Park.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: Pursuant to the provisions of section 37-45-136(3.6) C.R.S, 
the Board of Trustees of the Town of Estes Park hereby consents to the 
inclusion of the properties set forth on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference within the boundaries of the Subdistrict. 

Section 2: The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the Utilities Director 
or designee to file the necessary documents for inclusion of the lands as set 
forth on Exhibit "A" and pay all fees necessary to accomplish the inclusion of 
the lands within the Subdistrict. 

Section 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be enforced thirty (30) 
days after its adoption and publication by title. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of Estes Park, 
Colorado this ____ day of _______________, 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO 

By:  
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1



  

I hereby certify that the above Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the Board 
of Trustees on the   day of    , 2025 and published by title in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the Town of Estes Park, Colorado, on the    
day of    , 2025, all as required by the Statutes of the State of Colorado. 
 

        
Town Clerk 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Special Counsel 



Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 13-25 
PARCEL NUMBER LEGAL DESCRIPTION - METES AND BOUNDS ANNEXATION ORDINANCE 
3516400031 TR IN NW 1/4 OF SE 1/4 16-5-73, EP, DESC AS E 100 FT OF W 700 FT OF NW 1/4 OF SE 1/4 LY N OF C/L FALL RIV & S OF S LN HWY Ordinance 13-05 
3516400091 TR IN NW 1/4 OF SE 1/4 16-5-73, EP, DESC AS BEG AT CEN 1/4 COR, S 0 37' W ALG 1/4 SEC LN 186.5 FT TO SERLY ROW HWY 34; TH ALG ROW S 85 7' 

E 401.15 FT TPOB, TH ALG ROW S 85 7' E 15.85 FT, S 62 56' E 93.9 FT, TH LEAV ROW S 0 37' W 238.36 FT, N 60 40' W 114 
Ordinance 13-05 

3515300006 PAR IN NE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 16-5-73 & NW 1/4 OF SW 1/4 15-5-73, EP, BEG AT S 1/16 COR COMMON TO SEC 15 & 16 LOC ON NRLY BANK FALL RIV, E 
528 FT, N 330 FT, W TO PT ON SRLY ROW HWY 34 WH BEARS N 89 45' E 146.7 FT FROM PT WH BEARS N 1 19' E 330 FT FROM POB, TH 

Ordinance 13-05 

3526100033 POR NE OF NE SEC 26 & SE OF SE SEC 23-5-73, DESC AS BEG AT PT WH NE COR SEC 26 BEARS E 465   FT; TH S 20 15' E 360.3 FT M/L TO CEN FALL RIV 
RD; TH S 86 12' W 161 FT; TH S 64 14' W 242.7 FT; TH S 88 40' W 128.9 FT; TH N 1 47' E 719.1 FT; TH E 324.8 FT; TH 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400001 COM AT SE COR 23-5-73, N 176 FT, W 150 FT, N 224 FT, W 150 FT, SWRLY TO PT WH IS 315 FT W & 290 FT 4 IN N OF SE COR, S 290 FT 4 IN, E 315 FT 
TO BEG, ESTES PK; LESS RD DESC IN 1707-231 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400004 COM 315 FT W OF SE COR 23-5-73, N 290 FT 4 IN, W 150 FT, S 290 FT 4 IN, E 150 FT TO BEG, ESTES PK Ordinance 16-73 
3523400003 POR OF SE 1/4 OF SE 1/4 23-5-73 DESC AS POR OF FOL DESC PAR LY N OF N LN HWY AS IN 1069-236; COM AT PT 400 FT N & 150 FT W OF SE COR, TH 

N 290 FT, W 150 FT, S 290 FT, E 150 FT TPOB 
Ordinance 16-73 

3523300018 TR IN SE 1/4 OF SW 1/4 23-5-73 DESC AS BEG AT PT N 0 10' 30" E 486.20 FT FROM S 1/4 COR, TH N 89 49' W 500 FT TPOB; TH N 0 10' 30" E 500 FT, 
TH N 89 49' W 130 FT, TH S 0 10' 30" W 500 FT, TH S 89 49' E 130 FT TPOB, ESTES PK (C13N001030E) 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400019 COM AT SE COR 23-5-73, N 89 51' W 1000 FT, N 0 1' E 907.6 FT TPOB, N 0 1' E 243.9 FT, N 89 5' 8" W 170 FT, S 19 27' 24" W 158.17 FT, S 66 21' E 243 
FT TPOB, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523300009 BEG AT NW COR OF SW OF SW 23-5-73, S 89 46' E ALG N LN OF SW OF SW 345 FT TO PT ON N LN HWY 16, S 61 25' W ALG N LN SD HWY 395.5 FT TO 
W LN, N 36' E ALG W LN 191.7 FT M/L TPOB, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400005 COM 290.4 FT N & 315 FT W OF SE COR 23-5-73, TH W 195 FT, N 311.8 FT, TH SERLY TO PT 501.2 FT N & 300 FT W OF SE COR, S 101.2 FT, TH SRLY TO 
BEG, ESTES PK; ALSO COM AT SE COR, N 400 FT, W 150 FT TPOB, W 150.19 FT, N 70.49 FT, S 66 25' E 163.88 FT, S 4.92 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400025 TR IN SE 1/4 23-5-73 DESC: BEG AT PT WH BEARS N 61 58' W 1326 FT, S 79 31' W 129.2 FT, N 69 48' W 128.2 FT FROM SE COR, N 69 48' W 26 FT, S 
81 34' W 72.35 FT, N 27 24' E 290.06 FT TO PT ON SRLY R/W HWY 34 BY PASS, TH ALG SD R/W S 66 20' E 80 FT, S 26 20' 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400038 TR IN SE 1/4 23-5-73 DESC: BEG AT PT WH BEARS N 61 58' W 1326 FT FROM SE COR, S 79 31' W 129.2 FT, N 69 48' W 128.2 FT, N 26 20' 20" E 249.69 
FT TO PT ON SRLY R/W HWY 34 BYPASS, TH ALG SD R/W S 66 20' E 149.17 FT, S 0 1' W 184.65 FT TPOB CONT 1.0482 AC M 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400012 BEG AT PT IN SE OF SE 23-5-73 WH IS 1000 FT W & 579 FT N OF SE COR, W 40 FT, S 62 56' W 50.5 FT, W 85 FT, N TO S LN HWY 34 AS DESC IN 1073-
473, S 66 21' E ALG SD LN 185.6 TO PT WH IS N OF POB, TH S TPOB; LESS HWY, LESS 1103-363, ESTES PK; LESS RD AS PER 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400021 TR IN SE OF SE 23-5-73 DESC AS BEG AT PT 191.2 FT N, 718.7 FT W OF SE COR, N 472.4 FT TO S R/W HWY 34, N 66 21' W 88.3 FT, N 77 39' 30" W 102 
FT, N 66 21' W 104.7 FT, S 464 FT, E 15 FT, S 245 FT, E 150 FT, N 136.3 FT, E 116.3 FT TO BEG; EX RD, ESTES PK; 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400024 COM AT PT 1170 FT W OF SE COR 23-5-73; TH N 0 1' E 618.8 FT TO CEN RD, TH ALG CEN SD RD S 79 31' W 129.2 FT, N 69 48' W 45.4 FT TPOB, S 26 
21' W 263 FT, N 34 42' W 203.4 FT, N 27 24' E 105.6 FT, N 81 34' E 82.7 FT, S 69 48' E 108.8 FT TPOB, ESTES PK; LES 

Ordinance 16-73 

ATTACHMENT 2

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17382&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17382&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17382&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3523400922 POR SE 1/4 23-5-73 Ordinance 16-73 
3523400037 COM AT PT 556 FT N, 1000 FT W OF SE COR 23-5-73, S 128 FT, W 155 FT, N 128 FT, E 155 FT TPOB; ALSO COM AT PT 556 FT N, 1000 FT W OF SE COR, 

N 22.93 FT, N 89 49' W 40 FT, S 63 1' W 50.5 FT, N 89 49' E TPOB 
Ordinance 16-73 

3523400011 POR OF SE 1/4 23-5-73 DESC: COM AT PT 428 FT N & 1000 FT W OF SE COR, S 128 FT, W 170 FT, N 256 FT, E 15 FT, S 128 FT, E 155 FT TPOB Ordinance 16-73 
3523400018 POR OF S 1/2 OF SE 1/4 23-5-73, COM AT SE COR, N 89 51' W 1000 FT, N 0 1 E 1151.65 FT TPOB, N 89 5' 8" W 170 FT, S 19 27' 24" W 158.91 FT TO PT 

ON NRLY ROW HWY 34 BY-PASS, N 66 31' 32" W 99.25 FT, N 27 24' E 305.15 FT, N 88 51' E 3.57 FT, N 89 31' 49" 
Ordinance 16-73 

3523400010 BEG 835 FT W OF SE COR 23-5-73, N 55 FT, W 150 FT, N 0 1' E 245 FT, N 89 49' W 185 FT, S 0 1' W 300 FT M/L TO PT ON HWY R/W IN NE OF NE 26-5-
73, TH ALG SD R/W S 23 47' E 51.3 FT, S 44 16' E 320 FT M/L, N 77 17' 30" E 94.1 FT, N 0 1' E 292.9 FT M/L TPOB; 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400039 BEG AT SE COR 23-5-73, TH ALG E LN N 234 FT, N 41 2' 27" W 60.44 FT TPOB, N 41 2' 27" W 168.01 FT, S 230.31 FT, E 47.23 FT, N 31 20' 41" E 121.28 
FT TPOB (SPLIT FROM 35230 00 002) 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300023 BEG AT PT FROM WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W1084.5 FT, N 5 40' E 166.8 FT, S 89 31' E 235.2 FT TO W LN ALFRESCO PL, TH S ALG SD W LN 
165.2 FT TO SW COR SD ALFRESCO PL, N 89 45' W 254.3 FT TO BEG; LESS HWY, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300014 NEW PARCEL I, DESC AS: POR OF SW 1/4 24-5-73 & SE 1/4 23-5-73; BEG AT SW COR 24-5-73; TH S 89 49' 59" E 153.84 FT; TH N 00 28' 41" E 220.19 
FT; TH S 89 43' 25" W 21.41 FT; TH N 83 42' 59" W 135.25 FT; TH N 41 47' 45" W 28.9 FT; TH S 31 16' 27" W 90. 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300015 BEG AT PT WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 153.8 FT, S 89 45' E 157.6 FT, N 0 16' E 232.7 FT, N 89 37' W 157 FT, S 0 23' W 233.1 FT TPOB; EX 
HWY AS IN 1064-388, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300016 BEG AT PT WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 311.4 FT, S 89 45' E 121.5 FT, N 0 23' E 232.4 FT, N 89 37' W 121.5 FT, S 0 16' W 232.7 FT TO BEG; 
LESS HWY, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3523400002 POR OF 23 & 24-5-73 BEG AT SW COR SEC 24, TH ALG W LN SW 1/4 N 504.6 FT TPOB, TH 53.10 FT ALG CUR CONC NE, C/A 1 5' 47", RAD 2775 FT, 
RAD LN PASS THROUGH BEARS S 20 13' 9" W, N 270.27 FT, W 50 FT, TH W 150 FT, S 192.19 FT, S 67 11' 30" E 68.25 FT TO BE 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300022 BEG AT PT WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 917.4 FT, N 23' E 167.2 FT, S 89 31' E 182.8 FT, S 5 40' W 166.8 FT, N 89 45' W 167.1 FT TPOB; LESS 
STATE HWY, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300020 BEG AT PT WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 795.4 FT, S 89 45' E 122 FT, N 0 23' E 231.4 FT, N 89 37' W 122 FT, S 0 23' W 231.7 FT TPOB; LESS 
STATE HWY, ESTES PK AND ALSO BEG AT PT WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 674.4 FT, S 89 45' E 121 FT, N 0 23' 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300017 BEG AT PT WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 432.4 FT, S 89 45' E 121 FT, N 0 23' E 232.15 FT, N 89 37' W 121 FT, S 0 23' W 232.4 FT TPOB; LESS 
STATE HWY, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3524300018 BEG AT PT FROM WH SW COR 24-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 432.4 FT, S 89 45' E 242 FT, N 23' E 231.9 FT, N 89 37' W 242 FT, S 23' W 232.4 FT TPOB; 
LESS HWY, LESS W 121 FT, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200001 BEG AT PT FROM NW COR 25-5-73 WH BEARS N 89 45' W 917.4 FT, S 89 45' E 421.4 FT TO SW COR AL FRESCO PL, S 247 FT M/L TO NE COR SUNNY 
AC, TH ALG N LN SUNNY AC N 89 36' W 373.7 FT, N 10 31' W  254.4 FT TPOB, ESTES PK; LESS RD AS PER 91026456 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200007 BEG AT PT WH NW COR 25-5-73 BEARS N 38 26' W 498.1 FT, N 0 16' E 244.2 FT, S 86 31' W 195 FT, S 1 11' E 245.9 FT, N 86 5' E 189 FT TPOB, ESTES 
PK; LESS RD AS PER 91026461 

Ordinance 16-73 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3525200006 BEG AT PT WH NW COR 25-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 112.5 FT, S 89 45' E 198.9 FT, S 16' W 143.9 FT, S 86 31' W 195 FT, N 1 11' W 156.6 FT TPOB, 
ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200005 PT W 1/2 OF NW 1/4 25-5-73 DESC: BEG AT PT WH NW COR IS N 81 6' W 761.8 FT, S 18 30' W 141.6 FT, S 33 50' W 120.1 FT, S 85 30' W 59 FT, N 8 9' 
W 252.9 FT, S 87 35' E 206.6 FT TPOB; LESS RD AS PER 91032906 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200003 BEG AT PT WH NW COR 25-5-73 BEARS N 81 06' 00" W 761.8 FT, TH S 89 09' 00" E 186.7 FT; TH S 10 31' 00" E 135.8 FT TO N LN SUNNY ACRES; TH 
ALG SD N LN N 89 36' 00" W 256.3 FT; TH N 18 30' 00" E 141.6 FT TPOB, ESTES PK; LESS RD AS PER 91026455 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200012 BEG AT PT WH NW COR 25-5-73 BEARS N 38 26' W 498.1 FT, N 0 16' E 244.2 FT, N 83 8' E 139.9 FT, S 1 6' W 246.4 FT, S 85 30' W 136.7 FT TO BEG, 
ESTES PK; LESS RD AS PER 91026460 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200013 BEG AT PT WH BEARS N 89 45' W 311.4 FT FROM NW COR 25-5-73, N 89 45' W 226.3 FT, S 4 30' E 107.2 FT, S 78 51' W 98.3 FT, S 83 8' W 139.9 FT, N 
16' E 143.9 FT TO BEG, ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200004 BEG AT PT WH NW COR 25-5-73 BEARS N 89 45' W 537.7 FT, S 89 45' E 195.3 FT, S 9 28' E 116.3 FT, N 87 35' W 206.7 FT, N 4 30' W 107.2 FT TPOB, 
ESTES PK 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200002 BEG AT PT WH BEARS S 81 6' E 761.8 FT FROM NW COR 25-5-73, S 89 9' E 186.7 FT, N 10 31' W 118.6 FT, N 89 45' W 184.4 FT, S 9 28' E 116.3 FT TO 
BEG, ESTES PK; LESS RD AS PER 91026458; ALSO LESS RD PER 89036276 

Ordinance 16-73 

3525200011 BEG AT PT WH NW COR 25-5-73 BEARS N 49 54' W 581.7 FT, N 1 6' E 246.4 FT, N 78 51' E 98.3 FT, S 8 9' E  252.9 FT, S 85 30' W 137.6 FT TPOB, ESTES 
PK; LESS RD AS PER 91026459 

Ordinance 16-73 

3526100034 COM 180 FT W OF NE COR 26-5-73, W 285 FT, S 20 15' E 341.27 FT, N 88 13' 42 174.93, N 1 27' W 314.87 FT TO BEG, ESTES PK; LESS RD DESC IN 
1707-234 

Ordinance 16-73 

3526300048 COM AT W 1/4 COR OF 26-5-73, TH S ALG W LN OF NW OF SW S 0 19' 15" W 755.8 FT TPOB, S 89 38' 20" E 99.94 FT, TH ALG W LN LOT 10 S 0 4' 9" W  
211.14 FT TO SW COR LOT 10, N 89 54' 46" W 100.87 FT, N 0 19' 15" E 211.62 FT TPOB (SPLIT FROM 35263 00 020) 

Ordinance 09-94 

3526400008 COM AT PT WH SW COR OF SE 26-5-73 BEARS S 70 45' W 1523.4 FT, N 60 53' E 50 FT, N 48 41' E 563 FT, S 13 5' E 611 FT TO CEN BIG T RIV, TH WRLY 
ALG C/L RIV TO PT WH IS S 6 15' E 220 FT FROM POB, N 6 15' W 220 FT TO BEG, EP 

Ordinance 15-82 

2531300016 COM AT S 1/4 COR 31-5-72, EP, N 0 48' W 410.15 FT TPOB, N 76 38' 4" W 791.96 FT TO ERLY R/W HWY 7, N 38 56' 21" E 235.03 FT, S 73 53' 32" E 
266.67 FT, S 73 33' 42" E 379.53 FT, S 0 48' E 184.52 FT TPOB; ALSO LOT 2 MASONIC SUB, EP (COMBINE 25313-16-002 

Ordinance 10-02 

2531310001 TR A, REIDS S ST VRAIN, DESC AS; COM AT S 1/4 COR 31-5-72, N 0 48' W 805.72 FT, N 63 18' 32" W 248.75 FT TPOB, N 61 20' 32" W 221.97 FT TO 
ERLY R/W HWY 7, N 38 56' 21" E 24.5 FT ALG SD R/W, TH ALG ARC CUR L, C/A 1 58' 23", RAD 2914.79 FT, L/C N 37 57' 

Ordinance 159 

2531310002 TR B, REIDS S ST VRAIN, DESC AS COM AT S 1/4 COR 31-5-72, N 0 48' W 805.72 FT TPOB, N 63 18' 32" W 248.75 FT, N 42 35' 18" E 131.58 FT, S 62 29' 
25"E 147.97 FT, S 0 48' E 140.27 FT TPOB 

Ordinance 159 

 BEAR CREEK LUXURY  
3523328001 UNIT 1, BEAR CREEK LUXURY CONDOS EPK (20040102043) Ordinance 16-73 
3523328002 UNIT 2, BEAR CREEK LUXURY CONDOS EPK (20040102043) Ordinance 16-73 
3523328003 UNIT 3, BEAR CREEK LUXURY CONDOS EPK (20040102043) Ordinance 16-73 
3523328004 UNIT 4, BEAR CREEK LUXURY CONDOS EPK (20040102043) Ordinance 16-73 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129636&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133569&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17304&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark&searchid=6ef4e57e-6301-4d75-a964-f2873d9f36c4
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161869&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161869&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3523328005 UNIT 5, BEAR CREEK LUXURY CONDOS EPK (20040102043) Ordinance 16-73 
3523328006 UNIT 6, BEAR CREEK LUXURY CONDOS EPK (20040102043) Ordinance 16-73 
 CARRIAGE HILLS Ordinance 10-91 
3401215001 LOT 1, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215002 LOT 2, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215003 LOT 3, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215004 LOT 4, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215005 LOT 5, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215006 LOT 6, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215007 LOT 7, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215008 LOT 8, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215009 LOT 9, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215010 LOT 10, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215011 LOT 11, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215012 LOT 12, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215013 LOT 13, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215014 LOT 14, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128016 LOT 16, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128017 LOT 17, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128018 LOT 18, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128019 LOT 19, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH FIL, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128020 LOT 20, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128021 LOT 21, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128022 LOT 22, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128023 LOT 23, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128025 LOT 25, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128026 LOT 26, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128027 LOT 27, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128029 LOT 29, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128030 LOT 30, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3401128031 LOT 31, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128032 LOT 32, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128033 LOT 33, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128034 LOT 34, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401128035 LOT 35, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215036 LOT 36, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215037 LOT 37, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215038 LOT 38, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401215039 LOT 39, CARRIAGE HILLS 6TH FIL, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125001 LOT 1, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125002 LOT 2, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125003 LOT 3, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125011 LOT 11, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125012 LOT 12, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125013 LOT 13, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125014 LOT 14, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125015 LOT 15, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125016 LOT 16, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125017 LOT 17, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125018 LOT 18, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125019 LOT 19, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125020 LOT 20, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125021 LOT 21, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125022 LOT 22, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125023 LOT 23, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125024 LOT 24, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125025 LOT 25, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH FIL, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125027 LOT 27, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125028 LOT 28, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125029 LOT 29, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3401125030 LOT 30, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125031 LOT 31, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125032 LOT 32, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125033 LOT 33, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125034 LOT 34, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125035 LOT 35, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125936 LOT 36, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125037 LOT 37, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125038 LOT 38, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125039 LOT 39, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125040 LOT 40, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125041 LOT 41, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125042 LOT 42, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211043 LOT 43, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211044 LOT 44, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211045 LOT 45, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211046 LOT 46, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211047 LOT 47, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211048 LOT 48, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211049 LOT 49, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211050 LOT 50, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211051 LOT 51, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211052 LOT 52, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211053 LOT 53, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211054 LOT 54, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211055 LOT 55, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211056 LOT 56, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211057 LOT 57, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211058 LOT 58, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
2406211059 LOT 59, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3401125060 LOT 60, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH FIL, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125061 LOT 61, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125062 LOT 62, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125063 LOT 63, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125064 LOT 64, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125065 LOT 65, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125066 LOT 66, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125067 LOT 67, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125068 LOT 68, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125069 LOT 69, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125070 LOT 70, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125071 LOT 71, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125072 LOT 72, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125073 LOT 73, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125074 LOT 74, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125075 LOT 75, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125076 LOT 76, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125077 LOT 77, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3401125078 LOT 78, CARRIAGE HILLS, 7TH, EP Ordinance 10-91 
3402406916 LOT 16, CARRIAGE HILLS, 8TH FILING; LESS RD PER 86072532 Ordinance 01-00 
 CLOUD NINE SUB  
3516416001 Lot 1, CLOUD NINE SUB, EP (20170058299) Ordinance 10-17 
 DEER CREST  
3523306001 LOT 1, DEER CREST SUB, ESTES PARK Ordinance 16-73 
3523309056 TR 56A, ESTES PARK AMD LOT 2 DEER CREST SUB & TR'S 56 &57 FALL RIVER ADD, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3523308057 TR 57, ESTES PARK AMD LOT 2 DEER CREST SUB & TR'S 56 & 57 FALL RIVER ADD, EP Ordinance 16-73 
 ELKHORN EST  
3523411002 TRACT B1, AMD TRACT B, BOOTH RESUB OF LOTS 2-5 & 7, AND PORS OF LOTS 1,6,8 &9, ELKHORN EST,  EP (20130049373) Ordinance 16-73 
 EDWARDS  
3523414001 TRACT 15A, EDWARDS SUB, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3523414002 TRACT 15B, EDWARDS SUB, EP Ordinance 16-73 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129705&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17205&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=8189&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


 FALL RIVER ADDITION  
3523323061 TR 61A, FALL RIVER ADDITION TO TOWN OF ESTES PARK, AMD TR 59, 61, 62 & 63, EP (20030133966) Ordinance 16-73 
3523323062 TR 62A, FALL RIVER ADDITION TO TOWN OF ESTES PARK, AMD TR 59, 61, 62 & 63, EP (20030133966) Ordinance 16-73 
3523310001 LOT 1, STREAMSIDE AMD PLAT OF TR 59A FALL RIVER ADD AND LOT 2, OF AMD PLAT LOT 2, DEER CREST SUB, AND TR'S 56 & 57, FALL RIVER ADD TO 

THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK;(20050101901) LESS PHASE 1 CONDOS @20060048203; LESS SUPP 1 20110046573; LESS; LESS SUPP 1 AMND; 
Ordinance 16-73 

 FALL RIVER CONDOS  
3523420002 UNIT B, BLDG 503, FALL RIVER CONDOS, EP (99037226) Ordinance 16-73 
3523420004 UNIT D, BLDG 503, FALL RIVER CONDOS, EP (99037226) Ordinance 16-73 
 FISH CREEK   
2531464002 LOT 2, FISH CREEK ADD, EP Ordinance 20-95 
2531464003 LOT 3, FISH CREEK ADD, EP Ordinance 20-95 
 GRADY MINOR SUB  
3526111001 Lot 1, GRADY MINOR SUB, EP (20190043822) Ordinance 16-73 
 JAMES-MCINTYRE  
3522405007 LOTS 7 & 8, JAMES-MCINTYRE, ESTES PK Ordinance 16-73 
 JONES  
3524315002 LOT 2, JONES SUB, EP Ordinance 16-73 
 MOUNTAIN HAVEN  
3526450004 UNIT 4, MOUNTAIN HAVEN CONDOMINIUMS (20030096970) Ordinance 15-82 
 PARK CONDOS  
2531366001 CIC, PARK CONDOS, EP (99037912) Ordinance 14-95 
2531365001 UNIT 1, BLDG A, PARK CONDOS, EP (99037912) Ordinance 14-95 
2531365002 UNIT 2, BLDG A, PARK CONDOS, EP (99037912) Ordinance 14-95 
2531365004 UNIT 2, BLDG B, PARK CONDOS, EP (99037912) Ordinance 14-95 
 PARK RIVER WEST  
3525326001 LOT 1, THE PARK RIVER WEST SUBDIVISION, EP (2001098391); LESS 20030077911; 20030106552; 20030125222; 20040012984; 20040083612; 

20040099929; 20040117482; 20050022660; 20050100769;LESS 20060017346; 20060073966; AKA CIC (FOR CONDOS) 
Ordinance 15-82 

 PROSPECT ESTATES ADDITION  
3536406002 TRACT B, PROSPECT ESTATES ADDITION, EP Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT ESTATES   
3536410001 LOT 1, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129611&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129611&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133569&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129605&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129605&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129605&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=129605&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133569&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3536410002 LOT 2, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536410003 LOT 3, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536410004 LOT 4, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536410005 LOT 5, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536410006 LOT 6, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536410007 LOT 7, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536410008 LOT 8, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536410009 LOT 9, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536410010 LOT 10, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP; EX POR BY QUIET TITLE IN 1383-457 Ordinance 02-82 
3536410011 LOT 11, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP; EX POR BY QUIET TITLE IN 1383-457 Ordinance 02-82 
3536410012 LOT 12, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP; EX POR BY QUIET TITLE IN 1383-457 Ordinance 02-82 
3536410013 LOT 13, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP; EX POR BY QUIET TITLE IN 1383-457 Ordinance 02-82 
3536410014 LOT 14, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536410015 LOT 15, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536410017 LOT 17, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536410016 LOT 16, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536410018 LOT 18, PROSPECT ESTATES, EP Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT ESTATES 2ND   
3536422003 LOT 3, PROSPECT ESTATES SUB 2ND FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423011 LOT 11, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423012 LOT 12, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423013 LOT 13, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423014 LOT 14, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423015 LOT 15, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423016 LOT 16, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423017 LOT 17, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423018 LOT 18, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423019 LOT 19, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423020 LOT 20, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423021 LOT 21, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423022 LOT 22, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3536423023 LOT 23, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423024 LOT 24, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423025 LOT 25, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423026 LOT 26, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423027 LOT 27, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423031 LOT 31, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423030 LOT 30, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423029 LOT 29, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423037 LOT 37, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423034 LOT 34, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423033 LOT 33, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT EST SUB  
3536423028 LOT 28, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423036 LOT 36, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536423035 LOT 35, PROSPECT EST SUB 3RD FIL, EP Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB  
3536407001 LOT 1, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB, A PUD, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536407002 LOT 2, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB, A PUD, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536407003 LOT 3, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB, A PUD, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536407004 LOT 4, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB, A PUD, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536407005 LOT 5, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB, A PUD, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 3RD   
3536413009 LOT 9, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 3RD FILING, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536413011 LOT 11, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 3RD FILING, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536413012 LOT 12, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 3RD FILING, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536413013 LOT 13, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 3RD FILING, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536413014 LOT 14, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 3RD FILING, EP Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 4TH  
3536415016 LOTS 16 & 17, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD 4TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536415019 LOT 19, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD 4TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536415018 LOT 18, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD 4TH, EP  Ordinance 02-82 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3536415020 LOT 20, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD 4TH, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536415021 LOT 21, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD 4TH, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536415022 LOT 22, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD 4TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 5TH  
3536416023 LOT 23, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 5TH FILING, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536416024 LOT 24 & 25, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 5TH FILING, EP(COMBINE 35364-16-025) Ordinance 02-82 
3536416026 LOT 26, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 5TH FILING, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536416027 LOT 27 AMENDED, PROSPECT MTN SUB, PUD, 5TH FILING, EP (20100027950) Ordinance 02-82 
 PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH  
3536418031 LOT 31, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536418032 LOT 32, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536418033 LOT 33, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536418034 LOT 34, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536418035 LOT 35, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536418036 LOT 36, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536418037 LOT 37, PROSPECT MOUNTAIN SUB PUD 7TH, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
3536421001 LOT 38A, AMD LOT 38 PROSPECT MTN SUB PUD 7TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536421002 LOT 38B, AMD LOT 38 PROSPECT MTN SUB PUD 7TH, EP Ordinance 02-82 
 SEYBOLD   
3523407001 LOT 1, SEYBOLD SUB E P Ordinance 16-73 
 SOLITUDE SUB  
2529318001 LOT 3, SOLITUDE SUB (CONDOS) EP (2002030494); LESS 20030077909; LESS 20030096972; LESS 20030133970; LESS 20040011582; LESS 

20080002696; AKA CIC 
Ordinance 14-01 

2529314005 LOT 5, SOLITUDE SUBDIVISION, EP (2002030494) LESS 20040027677; LESS 20040045029; LESS 20050016175; LESS 20050037947; AKA CIC Ordinance 14-01 
2529320001 LOT 6, SOLITUDE SUB EP (2002030494); LESS 20030106550; AKA CIC; LESS POR PER  20210027268; Ordinance 14-01 
 SOLITUDE III  
2529317001 UNIT 1, LOT 3, SOLITUDE III CONDOS, EP  (20030077909) Ordinance 14-01 
2529317002 UNIT 2, LOT 3, SOLITUDE III CONDOMINIUMS, SUPP MAP NO. 1 (20030096972) Ordinance 14-01 
2529317003 UNIT 3, SOLITUDE III CONDOMINIUMS, SUPP MAP NO. 3, EP (20040011582) Ordinance 14-01 
2529317004 UNIT 4, LOT 3, SOLITUDE III CONDOMINIUMS, SUPP MAP NO. 2, EP (20030133970) Ordinance 14-01 
2529317005 UNIT 5, SOLITUDE 3 CONDOS SUPP 4, EPK (20080002696) Ordinance 14-01 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


 SOLITUDE IV  
2529315001 UNIT 1, LOT 4, SOLITUDE IV CONDOS, SUPP. NO. 1, EP  (20030072507) Ordinance 14-01 
2529315002 UNIT 2, LOT 4, SOLITUDE IV CONDOMINIUMS, EP (2003-0024978) Ordinance 14-01 
2529315003 UNIT 3, LOT 4, SOLITUDE IV CONDOMINIUMS, EP (20030024978) Ordinance 14-01 
2529315004 UNIT 4, LOT 4, SOLITUDE IV CONDOMINIUMS, SUPP MAP NO. 2, EP (20030133971) Ordinance 14-01 
2529315007 UNIT 7, LOT 4, SOLITUDE IV CONDOMINIUMS, SUPP MAP NO. 2, EP (20030133971) Ordinance 14-01 
2529315005 UNIT 5, SOLITUDE IV CONDOS, SUPP MAP NO. 3,  EP          20040081157 Ordinance 14-01 
2529315006 UNIT 6, SOLITUDE IV CONDOS, SUPP MAP NO. 3,  EP 20040081157 Ordinance 14-01 
2529316001 CIC, (LOT 4) SOLITUDE IV CONDOMINIUMS, EP (2003-0024978) LESS 20030133971 Ordinance 14-01 
 SOLITUDE V  
2529319001 UNIT 1, SOLITUDE VI CONDOS, EP  (20030106550) Ordinance 14-01 
2529324001 UNIT 1, SOLITUDE V CONDOS, SUPP NO. 2, EP  (20040081158) Ordinance 14-01 
2529324002 UNIT 2, SOLITUDE V CONDOMINIUMS, SUPP MAP 1 (UNIT 2), EP (20040045029) Ordinance 14-01 
2529319003 UNIT 3, SOLITUDE VI CONDOS, EP  (20030106550) Ordinance 14-01 
2529324003 UNIT 3, SOLITUDE V CONDOS, SUPP NO. 2, EP    (20040081158) Ordinance 14-01 
2529324004 UNIT 4, SOLITUDE V CONDOMINIUMS, (UNIT 4) EP (20040027677) Ordinance 14-01 
2529324005 UNIT 5, SOLITUDE V CONDOS  SUPP 3 LOT 5 EPK (20050016175) Ordinance 14-01 
2529324006 UNIT 6, SOLITUDE 5 CONDOS SUPP 4 EP (20050037947) Ordinance 14-01 
2529329007 Unit 7, SOLITUDE VI CONDOS SUPPLEMENT NO 1, EP  (20210027268) Ordinance 14-01 
 STEELE SUB  
3536412001 LOT 1, STEELE SUB, EP Ordinance 02-82 
3536412002 LOT 2, STEELE SUB, EP  Ordinance 02-82 
 SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER  
3522426001 UNIT 1, EVANS BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522429006 UNIT 6, BIG HORN MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS SUPP 3, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522427003 UNIT 3, DEER MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS SUPP 1, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522427004 UNIT 4, DEER MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS SUPP 1, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522430007 UNIT 7, ARROWHEAD MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS SUPP 3, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522430008 UNIT 8, ARROWHEAD MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS SUPP 3, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522433010 UNIT 10, EMERALD MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS, SUPP 5, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522428005 UNIT 5, CASTLE MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS SUPP 2, EP Ordinance 16-73 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17262&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=133587&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


3522433011 UNIT 11, EMERALD MTN BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS, SUPP 5, EP Ordinance 16-73 
3522426002 UNIT 2, EVANS BLDG, SUMMERSET ON FALL RIVER CONDOS, EP Ordinance 16-73 
 SUNDANCE MOUNTAIN SUBDIVISION  
3516412003 LOT 3, SUNDANCE MOUNTAIN SUBDIVISION (2001046744), EP Ordinance 05-01 
 WILSON  
3523409003 LOT 3, WILSON SUB, EP Ordinance 16-73 
 WITT SUBDIVISION  
3523422001 LOTS 1 AND 2, WITT SUBDIVISION, EP  20040003702 (COMBINED 3523422002) Ordinance 16-73 
3523422003 LOT 3, WITT SUBDIVISION, EP 20040003702 Ordinance 16-73 
3523422004 LOT 4, WITT SUBDIVISION, EP  20040003702 Ordinance 16-73 

 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=17253&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=161591&dbid=0&repo=TownofEstesPark


The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Memo 
Through: Town Administrator Machalek 

From: Reuben Bergsten, Utilities Director and Jacqueline Wesley, P.E., Project 

Manager  

Department: Utilities Department 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Resolution 72-25 Increase Contingency for the Prospect Mountain Water 

Improvements Project 

Type: Resolution 

Objective:  
Complete the Prospect Mountain water project by funding additional construction work 

resulting from differing site conditions, unanticipated permit compliance and County 

requirements, and changes to electrical service; extended interim financing costs; and 

development and water rights fees that are greater than those estimated at the time of 

budget development. 

Present Situation:  
As a result of the Prospect Mountain Water Company (PMWC) bankruptcy, the Town 

assumed ownership through the Voluntary Transfer Agreement, which requires the 

former PMWC customers to fund the reconstruction of their old water system to current 

Town standards. The costs include administrative costs and paying the Town 

development/water rights (tap fees).  

The Town obtained project grants and loans from the United States Department of 

Agriculture Rural Development (USDA-RD) and the Colorado Department of Local 

Affairs (DOLA) totaling $15, 298,000 for eligible costs. Ineligible costs include Town-

provide labor to support the construction of the project.  



In August 2022, the project advertised for bids and the selected qualified low bidder was 

Wagner Construction. When their base bid of $10,732,588 was combined with two 

additive alternates, the total bid price was $11,011,726. On September 29, 2022, the 

Board approved entering into the funding agreement with the USDA-RD (Resolution 67-

22 and Resolution 68-22) as outlined in the LOC and the contract with Wagner 

Construction (Resolution 82-22). 

 

The existing project budget is $15,298,000 per the USDA financing letter of conditions. 

We estimate the final project cost to be $15,800,000, including all USDA-RD grant and 

loan eligible costs and ineligible costs (Town labor). The total project budget includes 

USDA-eligible costs (defined in the Letter of Conditions) and ineligible costs (e.g. Town 

labor). This is an increase of $502,000 (3.28%) in the total project budget to be used for 

extended interim loan interest, the remaining town tap fees (development and water 

rights fees), Northern Water inclusions, Town labor, and changes during construction.   

 

The largest project cost item is the USDA-eligible construction cost for work completed 

by Wagner Construction. The current construction cost is $11,589,079.84, including the 

two additive alternatives and contingency funded change orders. The estimated 

remaining value of pending change orders and additional contingency is $400,000, 

bringing the estimated total contract value to $11,900,000 (part of the $15,800,000 

discussed above). This is an increase of $1,167,412 (10.64%) from the original bid and 

alternates.  

 

The following change orders have altered the value of the construction work. 

1. Increase in manhole size at the request of the Water Division. 

2. Increase in quantity of air vac/release valves/vaults, fire hydrants, and 6-inch DIP. 



3. Decrease in quantity of 8” bends, concrete encasement, 8x8 tees, 6x8 tees, 8-inch 

DIP, 8” gate valves, rigid pavement (concrete), temporary piping, water service 

connection and extension, and blowoff assemblies. 

4. Increase in the quantity of rock during construction from the original bid quantity. 

The bid quantity of rock excavation was 4,585 cubic yards (CY) for the mains and 

676 CY along the tank access. The total quantity of rock was estimated at the time 

of bidding as 5,261 CY. The additional rock quantity encountered during 

construction is 3,397.05 CY, for a total increased construction value of $490,448.60. 

5. Requirements of Larimer County permits: The requirements of the Larimer County 

permits acquired by the Contractor differed from those anticipated at bid time. 

Differences include additional stormwater sampling, more roadway surface 

restoration with different materials, and additional traffic control.  

Proposal:  
Staff request the following: 

1. Increase the project contingency funding used by staff to authorize change 

orders with Wagner Construction not to exceed $11,900,000. Staff will work with 

USDA-RD to adjust the LOC line items to not exceed $15,298,000 for the USDA-

RD funded portions of the project.  

2. Approval for increasing the total project budget to $15,800,000, which includes 

USDA-RD funded eligible items and ineligible items such as Town labor.  

Future adjustments to the project budget may be required to cover interim loan interest 

costs, remaining town tap fees, testing, and Northern Water Inclusion costs once they 

are calculated.   

Advantages:  
● Increasing project funding will allow the project to close out the outstanding Town 

labor costs. 

● Increasing contingency funding will allow enable continuation of construction. 



● The project will be completed enabling closeout with the USDA.  

Disadvantages:  
● The cost of construction is higher than the original bid; however, the requirement 

for repayment of all costs by the previous PMWC customers does not change. 

● Additional administrative actions are required; however, the USDA-RD has 

agreed to make adjustments with within the LOC upper limit.  

Action Recommended:  
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  

Finance/Resource Impact:  
503-7000-580.35-54 PMLOAN Prospect Mountain Water System Improvements, 

$502,000 increase. Staff will work with finance to differ existing capital projects to cover 

the increase.  

Level of Public Interest:  
Low with only interested parties being the former customers of the Prospect Mountain 

Water Company who are financially responsible for all project costs.  

Sample Motion:  
I move for the approval/denial of Resolution 72-25 amending the project budget and 

authorizing additional contingency for Wagner Construction’s contract via change orders 

to be executed by the Town Administrator and Utilities Director. 

Attachments:  
1. Resolution 72-25  

2. Presentation 

 



RESOLUTION 72-25 

A RESOLUTION INCREASING THE PROSPECT MOUNTAIN WATER SYSTEM 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT’S CONTINGENCY  

WHEREAS, on September 29, 2022, the Town approved Resolution 82-22 
approving a construction contract with Wagner Construction, Inc. for the Prospect 
Mountain Water Distribution Improvements Project; and 

WHEREAS, the United Stated Department of Agriculture – Rural Development 
provided a revised letter of conditions dated September 27, 2022 detailing funding in the 
form of grants and loans from the USDA-RD for a project cost of $15,298,000 including 
construction, contingency, and other project elements; and 

WHEREAS, the project costs are expected to exceed the contingency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO: 

The budget for the project contingency is increased by $502,000. 

DATED this  day of , 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1



Prospect Mountain Water System 
Improvements Project – Increase in 

Project Contingency

Town Board Meeting:
July 8, 2025

ATTACHMENT 2



Pr
oj

ec
t O

ve
rv

ie
w



PMWC 
Bank-
ruptcy

Bulk 
Water 

Service to 
PMWC

Preliminary 
Design

USDA-RD 
Funding -

LOC

Bidding of 
Project

Project 
Close-out

USDA-RD 
Final LOC

2015

2018

2020

20162022

2025 2019

Voluntary 
Transfer 

Agreement

Board 
Approves 
Project, 
Design

Project Roadmap



Current Status
Work Completed:
▪ Pipeline and hydrants complete, 2 

services remaining

▪ Tank constructed and pump station 
operational

Work Remaining:
▪ Disinfect/test/fill tank, place into service

▪ Final connections

▪ Restoration – roads and yards/surfaces 



Project Component LOC Value
Administration $537,000
Construction $10,732,588
Contingency $999,292
Engineering Fees $1,421,500
Interest - Interim $125,000
Remaining Development/ 
WR Fees $1,064,120

Easement Acquisition $250,000
Testing $161,000
Northern Water Inclusion $7,500
Total Budget/LOC $15,298,00

Funding Sources:
USDA-RD Loan 1 $4,493,000

USDA-RD Grant 2 $6,547,000

USDA-RD Grant 3 $3,988,000

Applicant Contribution $245,000

DOLA Grant $25,000

Total Funding $15,298,000

Original Budget



Use of Contingency
Item and Description Amount
Bid Alternates 1 and 2 $279,138.00
Change Orders $577,353.84

Rock excavation overages 1-8, (3350.14 CY) $493,598.60
Town requested changes $72,010.18
Various quantity adjustments and seeding change ($229,230.75 
Asphalt replacement required by Larimer County $240,975.81

Total $856,491.84

LOC Contingency $999,292



Pending Items
Item and Description Estimated Amount
Pending Change Orders

**County stormwater permit testing (contractor proposal) $154,543.10

**County shut-down incurred costs (contractor proposal) $108,237.49

**Traffic control required by the County (contractor proposal) $46,791.24

Change road materials (est.) $20,500

**  These items are identified by the Contractor as changes but have not been agreed to by the Engineer or Town. 
Additional supporting information has been requested by the contractor for these items. 



Requested Revised Budget
Project Component Amount
Construction $10,732,588
Contingency $1,501,292

Admin, Engineering, Interim loan interest, Town Development/ Water 
Rights fee, easements, testing, Northern Water Inclusion $3,566,120

Total Budget $15,800,000

Funding Source Amount
USDA-RD Loan
USDA-RD Grant (>68% of cost)
Applicant Contribution
Additional Contingency (per Resolution XX-25)
DOLA Grant
TOTAL

$4,493,000
$10,535,000

$245,000
$502,000

$25,000
$15,800,000



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Memo 
Through: Town Administrator Machalek 

From: J. Wesley, P.E., Capital Projects Manager

R. Bergsten, Utilities Director

T. Zimmerman, Finance Director

Department: Utilities Department, Water Division 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Resolution 73-25 Conditionally Awarding the Carriage Hills Spruce Knob 

Construction Project  

Type: Contract/Agreement, Resolution 

Objective:  
Our objective is to ensure high-quality, reliable water service by replacing old water 

mains and leveraging grant funds tied to the Spruce Knob project, through the 

conditional award of a construction contract. 

Present Situation:  
We prioritized the Carriage Hills water project due to the higher-than-typical emergency 

breaks each year. These breaks drive up our reactive maintenance costs and represent 

a loss of valuable water. This project will also improve water quality by installing new 

sections of pipe to create loops in the system.  

The replacement was divided into four phases to facilitate implementation. Phase 1 

addresses the "trunk" portion of the system, which includes pipes along Carriage Drive 

and a portion of Whispering Pines, making a critical connection to our existing water 

system at Pawnee/Highway 7, and connecting to the water system near Grey Fox. 

Additionally, a new pressure regulating valve (PRV) station will be installed.  



The State of Colorado requested that we support the reconstruction of the Spruce Knob 

Water System, resulting in a competitive grant application. The project was awarded a 

$1 million Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) grant, a $1.5 million Bipartisan 

Infrastructure Law (BIL) principal forgiveness, and a low-interest State Revolving Fund 

(SRF) loan of $ 3.5 million.  

The design for the combined project was completed in 2025. The bid package included 

several "bid schedules" to allow the Town to select the most cost-effective options for 

different construction areas and to maximize available funding.  

- Bid Schedule A was for the Spruce Knob (Joel Estes) portion of the project.  

- Bid Schedule B covered the Carriage Drive and Whispering Pines sections.  

- Bid Schedule C focused on the looping connection at Grey Fox. 

We lack adequate funding to proceed with the subsequent bid schedules.  

We received five (5) bids on May 13, 2025. The lowest bid was from Timber Wolf 

Excavating (TWX), and the second lowest bid was from High Plains Excavating. The 

order of the ranking remains the same regardless of the bid schedule combinations. The 

bid tabulation provides all the bid values for each schedule.  

Our consulting engineer reviewed the bids and found both TWX and High Plains to be 

responsive, responsible bidders with complete bid packages. 

Loan repayment 
As with the Park Entrance and Prospect Mountain projects, the Spruce Knob property 

owners will be responsible for their portion of the loan payments which will be collected 

as a separate line item on their water bills, see Resolution 17-25 dated February 25, 

2025.  

Project Financing  



Financing the Carriage Hills and Spruce Knob project is pending the SRF loan closing 

which is pending an approval letter (loan parity agreement) from the United States 

Department of Agriculture – Rural Development (USDA-RD).  

 

Proposal:  
Conditional Award: 
We propose that the Town Board conditionally award the construction contract for 

Schedules A, B, and C to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder in accordance 

with Town Policy. The award is conditioned on the loan closing with the Colorado Water 

Resources and Power Development Authority for the SRF loan and BIL principal 

forgiveness. The construction contract execution would follow the loan closing, and no 

further Board action would be required. 

 

Exclude Schedule C from the grant and principal forgiveness ratio 

Staff proposes the Town Board re-affirm the split of grant and principal forgiveness be 

based on Schedules A and B only, since Schedule C is for the benefit of Town's water 

system only. Spruce Knob’s allocation of grant and principal forgiveness is $337,078.65 

(13.5%). Staff allocated costs of common project elements to determine the Spruce 

Knob contract price allocation to be $827,475.00 (67%) based on the lowest bid. The 

final allocation of costs, grant, and principal forgiveness will be done upon project 

completion when the actual costs are known.  

 

Total Project Budget 

Staff propose that the Town Board authorize contingency within the project budget to 

allow timely processing of unknown field conditions (differing site conditions) or differing 

estimated to actual quantities, and that the Utilities Director be granted signature 

approval of change orders within the Total Project Budget. The maximum cumulative 

change order amount to be authorized by the Utilities Director without additional 

about:blank
about:blank
about:blank
about:blank


approval by the Board is limited to 20 percent of the bid value of the lowest bidder 

selected by the Board in this action. 

 
Advantages:  

● Combines water funds with a low-interest SRF loan, DOLA grant, and BIL 
principal forgiveness. 

● Allows for start of construction in Carriage Hills and completion of construction in 
Spruce Knob in 2025. Construction will be completed in Carriage Hills in 2026.  

● Meets the expectations of the funding agency and customers of Spruce Knob by 
applying the grant and principal forgiveness in an equitable manner without 
adverse impact to the Town’s rate payers.   

Disadvantages:  
● Allocation of the DOLA grant and BIL principal forgiveness reduced the amount 

available to Town of Estes Park water customers for the Carriage Hills 
improvements; however, we would not have gotten the grant and principal 
forgiveness without the inclusion of the Spruce Knob project.  

Action Recommended:  
Staff recommends approval of the Resolution to enter into a conditional construction 

contract.  

 

Finance/Resource Impact:  
503-7000-580.35-54, Carriage Hills and Spruce Knob Project Budget $9,852,730;   

 Funding Sources:  

 503-0000-333.00-00       $1,000,000 

 503-0000-334.30-00       $1,500,000 

 503-0000-388.40-00       $3,500,000 

 503-7000-580.35-54 (Water budget)       $3,852,730 

Total    $9,852,730 

Spent to date:   $ 567,376 



CAHILL budget balance (as of June 23, 2025):  $7,749,591 

Additional Funds Required:   $1,535,763 

Staff recommends $1,615,000 be reallocated from the following projects:  

 STRONG  $1,495,000 

 18VALV    $120,000 

  

Level of Public Interest:  
Low 

 

Sample Motion:  
I move for the approval/denial of the Resolution 

 

Attachments:  
1. Resolution 73-25 
2. Bids received for the project Bid Tabulation of all received bids 
3. Recommendation for Award by AE2S  
4. Resolution 17-25 
5. Analysis of Grey Fox Connection by AE2S 
6. Presentation 

 

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/ElectronicFile.aspx?dbid=0&docid=346522&
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/ElectronicFile.aspx?dbid=0&docid=346523&
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/ElectronicFile.aspx?dbid=0&docid=322040&


RESOLUTION 73-25 

CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT PLUS 
CONTINGENCY WITH THE LOW BIDDER FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

SPRUCE KNOB AND CARRIAGE HILLS WATER SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Town Board wishes to enter into a construction contract 
referenced in the title of this resolution for the purposes of replacing the water lines in 
Spruce Knob (Joel Estes) and a portion of Carriage Hills; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the project and the grant and principal forgiveness shall be 
allocated as defined in the Voluntary Water Service Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Utilities Director is authorized to sign, without additional Board 
action, change orders that total up to but do not exceed twenty percent of the construction 
contract value. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO: 

The Board approves and authorizes the Mayor to sign the construction contract 
referenced in the title of this resolution in substantially the form now before the Board, on 
the condition that the loan and principal forgiveness are closed with the Colorado Water 
Resources and Power Development Authority and including the contractors bid plus 
twenty percent contingency that can be authorized through the change order process and 
approved by the Utilities Director.   

DATED this  day of , 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2

ENGINEERING\RBergsten




















1

To: Jacqui Wesley, Town of Estes Park

From: David Vidikan, and William Blewett AE2S

Re: Timber Wolf Excavating Similar Past Project Performance and Experience – For the Carriage
Hills & Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements

Date: Wednesday, May 21, 2025

Five references were contacted and received responses from the
following three individuals: 

95TH St Reconstruct - Boulder County Public Works – Reference by Dan
Delange, Project Manager at Boulder County
Project Overview: 

This project involved the reconstruction of two miles of 95th Street, including significant
infrastructure upgrades. Key components included: 

Upgrading storm crossing systems
Installing a large box culvert
Relocating wet and dry utilities

o Note: The district installed the new waterline, with coordination support from
Timber Wolf Excavating

Project Performance: 

The project has progressed smoothly and is now nearing completion. According to Dan
Delange, the contractor has effectively addressed any issues that arose without delaying the
schedule or requesting change orders. Their proactive approach has contributed to the project
staying on track. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, and 90% completed
Budget: Under budget
Contract Value: $8.4 million

Summary: 

This project has been a model of effective planning, coordination, and execution. The
contractor’ s responsiveness and the collaborative efforts of all involved parties have ensured a
successful outcome. 

ATTACHMENT 3



2

CATOOSA INTERCEPTOR RELIEF- CITY OF TULSA OKLAHOMA – Reference
by Matt Voss, Construction Manager within the Public Works Department
under Engineering Services
Project Overview: 

This project involves the installation of approximately 12,000 linear feet of 60-inch diameter
trunk line sewer pipe. The alignment follows Spunky Creek and includes multiple creek
crossings. Key project elements include: 

Average trench depth of 25 feet
Four 84-foot bores required to cross active four-lane highways and streets
Challenging subsurface conditions, including rock and unstable soils

Project Performance: 

The project is currently under construction and approximately halfway complete. The contractor
has demonstrated strong performance, effectively addressing issues as they arise. There have
been no problems with pressure testing or CCTV inspections of the pipe or manholes. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, despite a demanding timeline. Completion date January 2027
Budget: On budget
Contract Value: $26 million

Summary: 

This project is progressing well under a tight schedule. The contractor has shown reliability and
competence, particularly in managing complex site conditions. According to Matt, this is one of
the best contractors the team has worked with, and he would confidently recommend them for
future projects. 



3

Fowler Chevrolet – Broomfield Colorado – Reference by Beth Tutt Project
Manager at Crossland Construction

Project Overview: 

This project involved earthwork, site utilities, and storm drainage for a new large development. 
Key components included: 

Relocation of 470 feet of the city's 12” waterline through the site. 
Building size: 65,000 square feet
Installation of 1,200 linear feet of 8” waterline around the building
Installation of 3 fire hydrants, fire service, and water service to the building
Tapping the relocated watermain

Project Performance: 

The contractor met the schedule with no issues related to utilities. The earthwork phase took
longer due to multiple change orders, which required negotiation by the construction manager. 
Overall, the contractor was good to work with according to Beth. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, and 85% completed
Budget: utility budget was good, but the earthwork budget was managed through change
orders
Contract Value: 2.4 million

Summary: 

The Fowler Chevrolet project in Broomfield, CO, was successfully completed with effective
management of earthwork, site utilities, and storm drainage. The contractor demonstrated good
performance and was cooperative throughout the project. 



1

To: Jacqui Wesley, Town of Estes Park

From: David Vidikan, and William Blewett AE2S

Re: High Plains Excavation & Aggregate LLP Similar Past Project Performance and Experience – 
For the Carriage Hills & Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements

Date: Wednesday, May 21, 2025

Five references were contacted and received responses from the
following three individuals: 

Cleave Street Sewer Improvements - Estes Park Sanitation District – 
Reference by Davina Gladson Collections Superintendent at Estes Park
Sanitation District

Project Overview: 
This project involves the replacement of the sewer line at Cleave Street Key project elements

include: 

Removing and replacing the sewer line with 1000’ of 8” PVC

Changing the direction of flow

Installing 5 new manholes

Location: Downtown main street of Estes Park

Project Performance: 
The project was completed ahead of schedule and within budget. According to Davina Gladson, 

the contractor was fantastic to work with, demonstrating efficiency and safety throughout the

project. 

Schedule and Budget: 
Status: Completed ahead of schedule

Budget: On budget

Summary: 
This project was a success, with the contractor showing exceptional performance in terms of

efficiency and safety. Davina Gladson highly recommends this contractor for future projects. 



2

Southgate Flex Buildings - Windsor, Colorado – Reference by Jeff Witter
Project Manager at Schumann Co.  
Project Overview: 

This project involves the development of 5-10 acres for the Southgate Flex Buildings. Key
components include: 

Installation of all utilities (water, sewer, storm) 
Short waterline installation (less than 100 feet) 
Sanitary line installation (500 feet) 

Project Performance: 

The project met both schedule and budget requirements. According to Jeff Witter there was a
change order for the final grade, which High plains handled excellently in terms of grading and
compaction. The change order was due to poor design from the engineer. Jeff said the
contractor was great to work with, demonstrating good operator skills and no issues with the
installed work. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, completed in 2022
Budget: On budget
Contract Value: $215,000

Summary: 

This project was successfully completed with the contractor showing great performance in
grading and compaction despite challenges with the design. Jeff Witter highly recommends the
contractor for future projects. 



3

Elkhorn Lodge Sitework- Estes Park, Colorado- Reference by Matt Lowder
Owners Representative

Project Overview: 

This project involved sitework, utilities, grading, and paving for a commercial and hotel
development site. The original contractor was replaced, and High Plains completed the project
successfully. Key project elements included: 

Installation of a small amount of 8" waterline
Sitework utilities
Grading and Paving

Project Performance: 

High Plains took over the project after the original contractor was fired. They demonstrated
strong performance, completing the work on budget and handling change orders fairly. The
contractor was open and completed the work in a timely manner, showcasing good capability. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, construction from 2/2024 – 5/2025
Budget: On budget
Contract Value: 2.6 million

Summary: 

Matt Lowder expressed satisfaction with High Plains' performance. He noted that they were very
happy with the contractor' s work and their ability to complete the project efficiently and
effectively. 



1

To: Jacqui Wesley, Town of Estes Park

From: David Vidikan, and William Blewett AE2S

Re: E-Z Excavating Similar Past Project Performance and Experience – For the Carriage Hills & 
Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements

Date: Wednesday, May 21, 2025

Six references were contacted and received responses from the
following three individuals: 

2024 Watermain Replacement – City of Arvada – Reference by Rob Lafrate
Municipal Inspector with the City of Arvada, Colorado

Project Overview: 
This project involves the replacement of approximately 20,000 linear feet of 8" C900 waterline

pipe and 300 residential services in residential neighborhoods.  

Project Performance: 

The contractor provided extra crews when needed and maintained excellent communication

with residents. Adam noted the staging area was kept clean. There were no failed

bacteriological tests or other testing issues. The contractor' s methodical approach and solid
performance were noted by the city. 

Schedule and Budget: 
Status: Meeting schedule, this is a current project

Budget: On budget

Contract Value: $5 million

Summary: 

The city has recently had three crews install waterline, and EZ will be the only company they
would have come back for another project. The contractor's reliability and competence were
highly appreciated. 



2

Vive on Via Varra – Broomfield Colorado – Reference by Andy Laycock
Owner at Meritage Homes

Project Overview: 
This project involves multi-phase projects where key project elements include: 

Installation of wet utilities
o 8” waterline, with lowering’s involved
o 8” Sanitary sewer
o 18”-42” RCP

Asphalt and concrete pavement.  

Project Performance: 

According to Andy Laycock, the contractor performed well, with great field staff and good

communication.  

Schedule and Budget: 
Status: met schedule on a 6-year project, competed on 7/1/2021

Budget: On budget, with one legitimate change order

Contract Value:  

o Original Value: $6,347,018

o Current Contract Value: $6,509,459

Summary: 
The contractor’s performance in managing engineering challenges and maintaining good

communication was highly appreciated. 



3

Preble Creek Waterline for Molz Construction - Broomfield Colorado – 
Reference by Jeff Steward Construction Inspection Supervisor at the City of
Broomfield
Project Overview: 

This project involves re installation of wet utilities, including 2000' of 24" C905 DR 18 PVC, 
erosion control, and a 43’ of 36” steel casing pipe.  

Project Performance: 

According to Jeff Steward, the contractor performed great work, met the schedule, and
effectively managed a problem with challenging soil issues, where groundwater was
unexpected, so dewatering most of the trench and installing ground water barriers was
performed. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, completed 6/30/19
Budget: On budget

o Original Value: $5,99,414

o Current Contract Value: $673,687

Summary: 

This project was successfully completed in June of 2019 on schedule and within budget. The
contractor’ s performance in managing soil issues and delivering quality work was highly
appreciated. 

















May 21, 2023

Ms. Jacqui Wesley, PE
Project Manager - Utilities
Town of Estes Park Water Department
1360 Brook Drive
Estes Park, CO 80517

Re: Carriage Hills and Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements – Qualification and
Experience of Bidders Review and Recommendation of Award

Jacqui: 

On May 13, 2025, five bids were received for the construction of the “Carriage Hills and Spruce
Knob Water Systems Improvements” project, for the Town of Estes Park.  A copy of the bid
results tabulation is attached.  The apparent low bidder on the project was Timber Wolf
Excavating, LLC, 520 N 45th Place, Broken Arrow, OK 74014.  Timber Wolf Excavating also
maintains a Colorado office located at 634 County Road 23-1/2, Brighton, CO 80603.   

Timber Wolf Excavating (TWX) qualifications and references have since been checked and
evaluated.  This evaluation included consideration of the following factors: 

Previous Similar Past Project Performance and Experience Record
Project Manager and Superintendent References
Financial Stability
Bonding Company Surety Information
Insurance Company Coverages and Past Claim Records

We’ve completed our review of TWX current Financial Statement, Bidder Qualification Form, 
subcontractors and their past performance on several similar projects.  See our attached
memorandum on TWX Similar Past Project Performance and Experience.  

The second lowest bidder on the project was High Plains Excavating & Aggregate LLP, 961
Juniper Lane, Estes Park, CO 80517.  High Plains Excavating & Aggregate (High Plains) 
qualifications and references were also checked and evaluated, including their current financial
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statement, qualifications of High Plains proposed Project
Manager and Project Superintendent, Bidder Qualification Form, subcontractors and their past
performance on several similar projects.  See our attached memorandum on High Plains Similar
Past Project Performance and Experience. 

It should be noted that High Plains plans to use a subcontractor, E-Z Excavating, 8123 Indian
Peaks Avenue, Frederick, CO 80516 to perform the installation of the new 8-inch diameter
waterline on the project.  Our understanding is that High Plains Excavating & Aggregate will be
performing the remainder of the work including road surfacing (asphalt and gravel pavements) 
and the new residential service line installations. 



Town of Estes Park
Carriage Hills and Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements
Page 2 of 2

E-Z Excavating’ s qualifications and references were also checked and evaluated, including
qualifications of their proposed Operations Manager, Pipe Division Superintendent, Vice
President and Asphalt/Field Superintendent, Bidder Qualification Form, and their past
performance on several similar projects.  See our attached memorandum on E-Z Excavating
Similar Past Project Performance and Experience. 

Based on our review, we believe both TWX and High Plains (and their subcontractor E-Z
Excavating) have the experience and resources to satisfactorily perform the Carriage Hills and
Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements Project for the Town of Estes Park.   

With the Town of Estes Park Purchasing Policy that includes a 5% Local Preference, the final
selection of the Contractor to perform the Carriage Hills and Spruce Knob Water Systems
Improvements project should be made by the Town of Estes Park Board of Directors.    

Please feel free to call me if you have any questions or need any additional information. 

Very truly yours, 

AE2S

David C. Vidikan, PE
Senior Project Manager

Attachments: 



ENGINEERING\RBergsten




















1

To: Jacqui Wesley, Town of Estes Park

From: David Vidikan, and William Blewett AE2S

Re: Timber Wolf Excavating Similar Past Project Performance and Experience – For the Carriage
Hills & Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements

Date: Wednesday, May 21, 2025

Five references were contacted and received responses from the
following three individuals: 

95TH St Reconstruct - Boulder County Public Works – Reference by Dan
Delange, Project Manager at Boulder County
Project Overview: 

This project involved the reconstruction of two miles of 95th Street, including significant
infrastructure upgrades. Key components included: 

Upgrading storm crossing systems
Installing a large box culvert
Relocating wet and dry utilities

o Note: The district installed the new waterline, with coordination support from
Timber Wolf Excavating

Project Performance: 

The project has progressed smoothly and is now nearing completion. According to Dan
Delange, the contractor has effectively addressed any issues that arose without delaying the
schedule or requesting change orders. Their proactive approach has contributed to the project
staying on track. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, and 90% completed
Budget: Under budget
Contract Value: $8.4 million

Summary: 

This project has been a model of effective planning, coordination, and execution. The
contractor’ s responsiveness and the collaborative efforts of all involved parties have ensured a
successful outcome. 



2

CATOOSA INTERCEPTOR RELIEF- CITY OF TULSA OKLAHOMA – Reference
by Matt Voss, Construction Manager within the Public Works Department
under Engineering Services
Project Overview: 

This project involves the installation of approximately 12,000 linear feet of 60-inch diameter
trunk line sewer pipe. The alignment follows Spunky Creek and includes multiple creek
crossings. Key project elements include: 

Average trench depth of 25 feet
Four 84-foot bores required to cross active four-lane highways and streets
Challenging subsurface conditions, including rock and unstable soils

Project Performance: 

The project is currently under construction and approximately halfway complete. The contractor
has demonstrated strong performance, effectively addressing issues as they arise. There have
been no problems with pressure testing or CCTV inspections of the pipe or manholes. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, despite a demanding timeline. Completion date January 2027
Budget: On budget
Contract Value: $26 million

Summary: 

This project is progressing well under a tight schedule. The contractor has shown reliability and
competence, particularly in managing complex site conditions. According to Matt, this is one of
the best contractors the team has worked with, and he would confidently recommend them for
future projects. 



3

Fowler Chevrolet – Broomfield Colorado – Reference by Beth Tutt Project
Manager at Crossland Construction

Project Overview: 

This project involved earthwork, site utilities, and storm drainage for a new large development. 
Key components included: 

Relocation of 470 feet of the city's 12” waterline through the site. 
Building size: 65,000 square feet
Installation of 1,200 linear feet of 8” waterline around the building
Installation of 3 fire hydrants, fire service, and water service to the building
Tapping the relocated watermain

Project Performance: 

The contractor met the schedule with no issues related to utilities. The earthwork phase took
longer due to multiple change orders, which required negotiation by the construction manager. 
Overall, the contractor was good to work with according to Beth. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, and 85% completed
Budget: utility budget was good, but the earthwork budget was managed through change
orders
Contract Value: 2.4 million

Summary: 

The Fowler Chevrolet project in Broomfield, CO, was successfully completed with effective
management of earthwork, site utilities, and storm drainage. The contractor demonstrated good
performance and was cooperative throughout the project. 



1

To: Jacqui Wesley, Town of Estes Park

From: David Vidikan, and William Blewett AE2S

Re: High Plains Excavation & Aggregate LLP Similar Past Project Performance and Experience – 
For the Carriage Hills & Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements

Date: Wednesday, May 21, 2025

Five references were contacted and received responses from the
following three individuals: 

Cleave Street Sewer Improvements - Estes Park Sanitation District – 
Reference by Davina Gladson Collections Superintendent at Estes Park
Sanitation District

Project Overview: 
This project involves the replacement of the sewer line at Cleave Street Key project elements

include: 

Removing and replacing the sewer line with 1000’ of 8” PVC

Changing the direction of flow

Installing 5 new manholes

Location: Downtown main street of Estes Park

Project Performance: 
The project was completed ahead of schedule and within budget. According to Davina Gladson, 

the contractor was fantastic to work with, demonstrating efficiency and safety throughout the

project. 

Schedule and Budget: 
Status: Completed ahead of schedule

Budget: On budget

Summary: 
This project was a success, with the contractor showing exceptional performance in terms of

efficiency and safety. Davina Gladson highly recommends this contractor for future projects. 



2

Southgate Flex Buildings - Windsor, Colorado – Reference by Jeff Witter
Project Manager at Schumann Co.  
Project Overview: 

This project involves the development of 5-10 acres for the Southgate Flex Buildings. Key
components include: 

Installation of all utilities (water, sewer, storm) 
Short waterline installation (less than 100 feet) 
Sanitary line installation (500 feet) 

Project Performance: 

The project met both schedule and budget requirements. According to Jeff Witter there was a
change order for the final grade, which High plains handled excellently in terms of grading and
compaction. The change order was due to poor design from the engineer. Jeff said the
contractor was great to work with, demonstrating good operator skills and no issues with the
installed work. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, completed in 2022
Budget: On budget
Contract Value: $215,000

Summary: 

This project was successfully completed with the contractor showing great performance in
grading and compaction despite challenges with the design. Jeff Witter highly recommends the
contractor for future projects. 



3

Elkhorn Lodge Sitework- Estes Park, Colorado- Reference by Matt Lowder
Owners Representative

Project Overview: 

This project involved sitework, utilities, grading, and paving for a commercial and hotel
development site. The original contractor was replaced, and High Plains completed the project
successfully. Key project elements included: 

Installation of a small amount of 8" waterline
Sitework utilities
Grading and Paving

Project Performance: 

High Plains took over the project after the original contractor was fired. They demonstrated
strong performance, completing the work on budget and handling change orders fairly. The
contractor was open and completed the work in a timely manner, showcasing good capability. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, construction from 2/2024 – 5/2025
Budget: On budget
Contract Value: 2.6 million

Summary: 

Matt Lowder expressed satisfaction with High Plains' performance. He noted that they were very
happy with the contractor' s work and their ability to complete the project efficiently and
effectively. 



1

To: Jacqui Wesley, Town of Estes Park

From: David Vidikan, and William Blewett AE2S

Re: E-Z Excavating Similar Past Project Performance and Experience – For the Carriage Hills & 
Spruce Knob Water Systems Improvements

Date: Wednesday, May 21, 2025

Six references were contacted and received responses from the
following three individuals: 

2024 Watermain Replacement – City of Arvada – Reference by Rob Lafrate
Municipal Inspector with the City of Arvada, Colorado

Project Overview: 
This project involves the replacement of approximately 20,000 linear feet of 8" C900 waterline

pipe and 300 residential services in residential neighborhoods.  

Project Performance: 

The contractor provided extra crews when needed and maintained excellent communication

with residents. Adam noted the staging area was kept clean. There were no failed

bacteriological tests or other testing issues. The contractor' s methodical approach and solid
performance were noted by the city. 

Schedule and Budget: 
Status: Meeting schedule, this is a current project

Budget: On budget

Contract Value: $5 million

Summary: 

The city has recently had three crews install waterline, and EZ will be the only company they
would have come back for another project. The contractor's reliability and competence were
highly appreciated. 



2

Vive on Via Varra – Broomfield Colorado – Reference by Andy Laycock
Owner at Meritage Homes

Project Overview: 
This project involves multi-phase projects where key project elements include: 

Installation of wet utilities
o 8” waterline, with lowering’s involved
o 8” Sanitary sewer
o 18”-42” RCP

Asphalt and concrete pavement.  

Project Performance: 

According to Andy Laycock, the contractor performed well, with great field staff and good

communication.  

Schedule and Budget: 
Status: met schedule on a 6-year project, competed on 7/1/2021

Budget: On budget, with one legitimate change order

Contract Value:  

o Original Value: $6,347,018

o Current Contract Value: $6,509,459

Summary: 
The contractor’s performance in managing engineering challenges and maintaining good

communication was highly appreciated. 



3

Preble Creek Waterline for Molz Construction - Broomfield Colorado – 
Reference by Jeff Steward Construction Inspection Supervisor at the City of
Broomfield
Project Overview: 

This project involves re installation of wet utilities, including 2000' of 24" C905 DR 18 PVC, 
erosion control, and a 43’ of 36” steel casing pipe.  

Project Performance: 

According to Jeff Steward, the contractor performed great work, met the schedule, and
effectively managed a problem with challenging soil issues, where groundwater was
unexpected, so dewatering most of the trench and installing ground water barriers was
performed. 

Schedule and Budget: 

Status: On schedule, completed 6/30/19
Budget: On budget

o Original Value: $5,99,414

o Current Contract Value: $673,687

Summary: 

This project was successfully completed in June of 2019 on schedule and within budget. The
contractor’ s performance in managing soil issues and delivering quality work was highly
appreciated. 

















Page 1 of 2
Think Big. Go Beyond .   www. ae2s. com

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM
To: Jacqui Wesley, P.E. 

From: Trevor Datwyler, P.E. 

Re: Grey Fox Drive Water Main Connection

Date: May 28, 2025

As the Town of Estes Park moves forward with the vital initiative to replace aging and undersized
water mains in the Carriage Hills area, it is essential to carefully evaluate alternatives that
maximize the impact of the project budget. One such opportunity is the extension of the
existing 8-inch water main along Grey Fox Drive to connect with the new 8-inch main along
Whispering Pines Drive. This connection offers a range of system-wide benefits that support the
Town’s goals for reliability, safety, and water quality. 

Key Benefits of the Grey Fox Drive Water Main Extension

Enhanced Redundancy and System Resiliency: 
The planned interconnection at Pawnee Drive will provide an important secondary supply route, 
linking the Mary’s Lake water source to Carriage Hills. Adding a second connection via Grey Fox
Drive further enhances system resiliency, offering an alternative path for water delivery in case of
main breaks, maintenance activities, or other disruptions. 

Improved Fireflow Capacity: 
Installing the Grey Fox Drive water main significantly increases fireflow availability in the
surrounding area, particularly near Grey Fox Drive and Larkspur Avenue. Fireflow capacity at 20
psi is projected to increase from approximately 1,500 gallons per minute (gpm) to more than
2,500 gpm, thereby improving fire protection capabilities and public safety. 

Reduced Water Age and Enhanced Water Quality: 
Dead-end water mains, such as the one currently terminating on Grey Fox Drive, can lead to
stagnation and diminished water quality. Extending this main to connect with Whispering Pines
Drive eliminates the dead-end, promoting better circulation. Hydraulic modeling indicates that
the water age at the north end of Grey Fox Drive would decrease by 25% under average usage
conditions. At the intersection of Grey Fox Drive and Larkspur Avenue, the improvement is even
more dramatic, reducing water age from five days to just eight hours. 

ATTACHMENT 5



Technical Memorandum
Re:  Grey Fox Drive Water Main Connection
May 28, 2025

Page 2 of 2
Think Big. Go Beyond .   www. ae2s. com

Conclusion: 

Investing in the extension of the Grey Fox Drive water main represents a strategic enhancement
to the Carriage Hills water distribution system. This improvement addresses multiple critical
objectives—bolstering system redundancy, increasing fire protection capacity, and improving
water quality for residents. By prioritizing high-impact improvements like this, the Town of Estes
Park can ensure that the benefits of infrastructure investment are both immediate and long-
lasting. 



7/7/2025

1

Carriage Hills and Spruce Knob Water 
System Improvements Project –

Conditional Award

July 8, 2025

cost/benefit ideological change in value of conservation

Let’s use this spreadsheet to list the major timeline events
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1eqB-oIgnNp_nrp-
KLBTSWoHkqRIYZS5Cz62N5de2RsA/edit?usp=sharing

And then insert the list into Chat gpt to auto generate a timeline  

Example timeline

2020: CIP added
Carriage Hills

Nov 2021: 
BIL/IIJA Money

Nov 2021: Passed 
BIL/IIJA Funding

Dec 2022: 
Design

Dec 2022: add
Spruce Knob, 
Res. 102-22

1989: Voluntary Transfer, 
Carriage Hills/Crystal Water 
Co. to the Town

Historical Values: 
Defer CIP using bleeders

2013: Values Changing 
May State Water Plan
Aug. Trustee emphasis on conservation

Mar. 2024: 
Grant, Res. 25-24

May 2024: Public 
Meeting

Aug 2024: 
DOLA Grant Award, $1M 

Aug 2024: 
$1.5M grant plus $3.5M Loan 
from SRF (State Revolving Fund)

1

2

ATTACHMENT 6



7/7/2025

2

Pr
oj

ec
t L

oc
at

io
ns

General Location –
Carriage Hills

General Location –
Spruce Knob

Project Bids

BT 
ConstructionHEIWagnerHigh PlainsTWXBid Schedule

$1,723,267.46$1,847,380.05$1,393,870.00$1,145,715.00$1,237,210.00A – Spruce Knob

$8,723,129.08$8,182,965.20$6,771,020.00$5,588,327.25$5,228,070.00B – Carriage Dr & 
Whispering Pines

$852,087.41$1,010,042.20$768,529.00$634,899.00$708,345.00C – Grey Fox

$11,298,483.95$11,040,387.45$8,933,419.00$7,368,941.25$7,173,625.00Total – A, B, and C

+2.72%Difference

3

4



7/7/2025

3

Recommended Schedules to Award

A. Spruce Knob

RAMSHORN DR

G
R

EY
 F

O
X 

D
R

 
C

O
N

N
EC

TI
O

N

B. Pawnee and 
Carriage Drive to 
Ramshorn, 
Whispering Pines 
from Ponderosa 
Ave to 
approximately Pine 
Meadows Dr.

C. Grey Fox connection

Project Financing 

$2,660,454Drinking Water Revolving Fund Base Loan (SRF)
$838.087

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

Drinking Water BIL Loan (administered through SRF

BIL Principal Forgiveness (administered through SRF)

2024 EIAF (DOLA) Grant
$5,998,541Subtotal

$3,498,541Loans (BIL and SRF)
20SRF Loan Duration, years

3.25%Interest Rate
$239,263Debt Service, annual

5

6



7/7/2025

4

Town Funding 

Project Cost – Planning, Engineering, Construction, Town Costs, Contingency $9,852,730

Spent to Date $567,376

Remaining Project Budget $7,749,591

Additional Required Funding $1,535,763

Available Funds through CIP Transfer
STRONG (Strong PRV and PS rebuild) $1,495,000

18VALV $120,000

Total $1,615,000

Board Consideration

 Award Schedules A, B and C

 Project contingency as approved by the Town Administrator and Utilities 
Director

 Amend budget to reallocate $1,615,000 from other capital projects

 Exclude Schedule C (Grey Fox) from the Spruce Knob repayment

7

8



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Memo 
Through: Town Administrator Machalek 

From: Reuben Bergsten, Director and Joe Lockhart, Line Superintendent 

Department: Utilities 

Date: 

Subject: 

Type: 

July 8, 2025 

Resolution 74-25 Request DOLA Amend Grant EIAF B-022 to Extend the 

Deadline for Broadband Planning and Implementation Grant Agreement 

Resolution 

Objective: 
Our objective is to request DOLA (Department of Local Affairs) extend the deadline for 

our Broadband Planning and Implementation grant agreement #EIAF B-022 for staff to 

address the reduced project scope. 

Present Situation:  
The DOLA funded Broadband Implementation Grant was awarded to support expansion 

of fiber-optic-based broadband services within the Town of Estes Park Power & 

Communications Division service area. This included Glenhaven, Allenspark, and 

Highway 36 areas. In addition, a fiber design was created for Pinewood Springs.  We 

need more time to develop options for the entire scope of work outlined in the original 

grant agreement.   

Proposal:  
We request the Town Board authorize the Mayor to sign and submit a letter to DOLA 

requesting an extension of the grant deadline. The extension will allow Staff time to 

define the reduced scope of work and develop options for future services in the Power 

and Communications service area.    

Advantages: 



This will allow us to close our grant agreement. 

Disadvantages: 
None  

Action Recommended:  
Approval of the resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign the proposed amendment to our 

grant agreement.   

Finance/Resource Impact: 
None  

Level of Public Interest: 
Low 

Sample Motion:  
I move for the approval/denial of resolution 74-25 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 74-25

2. Summary of changes



RESOLUTION 74-25 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS AMEND 
GRANT EIAF B-022’s SCOPE OF PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the Town of Estes Park acting by and through its Power and 
Communications Enterprise passed Resolution 34-22 approving the DOLA (Colorado 
Department Of Local Affairs) Broadband Initiative planning and Implementation grant 
program application; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Estes Park acting by and through its Power and 
Communications Enterprise passed Resolution 96-22 accepting DOLA Grant EIAF-B022; 
and 

WHEREAS, inflation drove costs to exceed the project’s planned estimates; and 

WHEREAS, the project funds were depleted before the grant’s defined scope was 
completed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF ESTES PARK, COLORADO: 

Request an amendment to EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF PROJECT (SOP) paragraph 
2.2 as follows: 

2.2. Work Description. The Town of Estes Park (Grantee) will utilize in-house staff 
and work with a previously hired qualified contractor to complete expansion of broadband 
service within the Town of Estes Park Power & Communications Division service area. 
Work includes: final design and installation of approximately 15.4 miles of fiber to Glen 
Haven. The Glen Haven area has four (4) cabinet boundary areas. Each cabinet contains 
several terminals that will service between 4 to 12 premises. Additional Work includes: 
preliminary engineering for middle mile fiber to the Pinewood Springs area located 
approximately 12 miles from Estes Park, and all the side roadways within the Pinewood 
Springs area. Grantee will own and maintain all broadband infrastructure and, in 
accordance with §9 below, a contractor will be hired in addition to in-house staff to 
complete the Work. 

The Town Board authorizes the Mayor to send a letter to DOLA to provide detailed 
reasons for the Town’s request to amend the Grant Agreement as stated in this 
Resolution and, if necessary, request an extension of the term of the Grant Agreement. 

DATED this  day of , 2025. 

TOWN OF ESTES PARK 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Town Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1

https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/ElectronicFile.aspx?dbid=0&docid=196344&
https://dms.estes.org/WebLink/ElectronicFile.aspx?dbid=0&docid=205889&


DOLA EIAF B-022 - Estes Park Broadband Planning and Implementat ion 
Amendment  to extend the deadline due to changing Scope of Work  
Town of Estes Park 
June 12, 2025. 

Reason for Revision: 
Construction on the grant's scope of work commenced immediately upon 
receipt of the award letter on August 22, 2022. By early 2023, the effects 
of inflation became apparent, necessitating a shift from independent 
contractors to the more cost-effective, albeit slower, utilization of in-house 
staff.   
Our initial optimism that this approach would allow us to remain within the 
original budget proved unfounded as inflation and a higher than planned 
take rate. We planned for 20% in the first year and we had a 44% take rate 
in the Hwy 43/ grant funded area. 
We completed the design for the entire grant funded area. The Allenspark 
area required an additional cabinet.  

We could not complete construction of: 
a. two cabinets along Hwy 34 and
b. four of five cabinets in the Allenspark/ Hwy 7 grant funded area

Summary of Changes: 
Include language to add use of in-house staff in addition to contractors.  
Remove the fiber construction in Allenspark. Although we completed one 
cabinet, the original grant scope only included four cabinets.  
Remove fiber construction along Highway 34.   

Revised Scope of Work: 
Work Descript ion.  

● The Town of Estes Park (Grantee) will work with a previously hired
qualified contractor.

○ Revised to add the utilization of in-house staff in addition to
previously hired qualified contractors.

ATTACHMENT 2



● Final Design and Installation of:
○ Retain approximately 15.4 miles of fiber to Glen Haven which

was completed September 1, 2023. The demand for broadband
services exceeded the original grant scope of 20% take rate
resulting in higher-than-expected costs.

○ Remove from the scope approximately 7 miles of fiber east
along Highway 34, due to higher costs.

○ Remove approximately 78 miles of fiber for the Allenspark area,
which is partially (21 miles installed from Estes to Allenspark)
October 1, 2023

● Cabinet Boundary Areas that feed approximately 200 premises per
cabinet.  Each cabinet contains several terminals that will service
between 4 to 12 premises each.

○ Glen Haven segment included four (4) cabinet boundary areas,
Completed September 1, 2023.

○ Remove the Allenspark segment which had included four (4)
cabinet boundary areas. One cabinet was completed October 1,
2023; however, as we completed the final design an additional
cabinet had to be added.

○ Remove the highway 34 segment.

● We completed the preliminary engineering for middle mile fiber to the
Pinewood Springs area located approximately 12 miles from Estes
Park, and all the side roadways within the Pinewood Springs area..

Deliverables: 
● Digital photos of the project will be submitted with the Final Report.
● Preliminary plans for the Pinewood Springs area will be submitted

with the Final Report.

Updated Timeline 
Construction and design began August 22, 2022. 
Final Report July, 2025. 



The Town of Estes Park is committed to providing equitable access to our services. Contact us 

if you need any assistance accessing material at 970-577-4777 or townclerk@estes.org. 

Report 
To: Honorable Mayor Hall & Board of Trustees 

From: Town Administrator Machalek 

Department: Town Administrator’s Office 

Date: July 8, 2025 

Subject: Transportation Advisory Board Next Steps - Sunsetting/Bylaw Review 

Objective: 
This is for Town Board discussion only. No packet material has been provided 

outside of the Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) bylaws for reference.  

Attachments: 
1. TAB Bylaws



ATTACHMENT 1









PUBLIC COMMENT RECEIVED ON 7/7/2025 

Board of Trustees Public Comment
Name: Deb Dufty

Stance on Item: For

Agenda Item Title: [object Object]

Public Comment:

I believe a clear and streamlined communication/feedback pathway strengthens the relationship between
trustees and their constituents. In a perfect world, rumors or generalized discontent are less likely when
citizens are in the habit of engaging with their elected officials. Likewise, direct feedback from one person
may enlighten a trustee as to the impact of a decision. Advisory committees are helpful if their mission is
limited in time and scope, and those who serve on the committee are particularly well-situated or
experienced re: the matter at hand. A standing committee which meets monthly and decides for itself the
ways and means by which it gathers information (including public feedback) inserts an intermediary into the
trustee-constituent relationship. Those who remain on standing committees for years may be perceived as
(unelected) voices of authority, which can increase a sense of indispensability and chill both discourse and
participation by less familiar voices.

File Upload

Please note, all information provided in this form is considered public record and will be included as permanent record for
the item which it references.

Files are limited to PDF or JPG.

25 MB limit. Video files cannot be saved to the final packet and must be transcribed before submitting.


	Town Board Meeting & Study Session Minutes dated June 24, 2025
	Estes Park Planning Commission Minutes dated April 15, 2025 and May 20,2025 (acknowledgement only)
	Base Funding Report: Estes Arts District
	Resolution 69-25 Transfer of Ownership from JWC Stanley Holding, LLCdba The Stanley Hotel to Stanley Partnership for Art Culture and EducationLLC dba The Stanley Hotel, 333 Wonderview Avenue, Hotel & RestaurantLiquor License
	Initiated Ordinance Petition – To Amend the Estes Park Development CodeRegarding Rezonings and Planned Unit Development Applications
	Initiated Ordinance Petition – To Repeal Section 11.4 and AssociatedBuilding Height Limits in Section 4.3 of the Estes Park Development Code
	Ordinance 13-25 Replace Ordinance 07-22 Considering the Inclusion ofCertain Properties Located within the Town of Estes Park into the MunicipalSub-District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District
	Resolution 72-25 Increase Contingency for the Prospect Mountain WaterImprovements Project
	Resolution 73-25 Contingent Award of the Spruce Knob and Carriage HillsWater Systems Construction
	Resolution 74-25 Revise the Scope of Work for DOLA EIAF B-022 EstesPark Broadband Planning and Implementation
	Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) Next Steps – Sunsetting and BylawsReview



